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Letter from The Executive Vice President

Fiscal 2020 was impacted by the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, 

the effects of which will be felt for years to come.  We experienced 

losses on virtually all major revenue streams after the campus 

closed in March.  These were largely addressed through aggressive 

cost control measures (and federal relief funds provided to DUHS 

while many of its clinical activities were dormant).  As a result, 

we achieved marginally positive operating results for both the 

University and Health System.

Duke University’s overall financial performance for the year 

was stable, driven by three fiscal quarters of normal operations, 

continued growth in research and clinical care, and remarkable 

levels of philanthropic support ($517 million).  After reaching a 

record high of $15.3 billion in June 2019, consolidated net assets 

declined to $14.4 billion during fiscal 2020, largely reflecting 

spending from our invested balances in excess of returns.

Capital expenditure was down significantly from prior years, and 

included a new Pratt School of Engineering facility, expansion 

of the University’s utility infrastructure, and completion of 

collaborative space for the Schools of Medicine and Nursing.  

This is my last signed financial statement.  It’s been a magical 25 

years for me and for Duke.  When I got here our endowment was 

less than a billion; it’s ten times that now.  We’ve built more new 

space than the original campus construction and won national 

and international architectural awards.  We set a course toward 

environmental sustainability by eliminating coal from the campus 

steam plant and signing the largest solar energy deal ever in North 

Carolina.  We built an information technology infrastructure that’s 

envied by our peers.  We’ve cared for and about tens of thousands 

of employees, being the largest employer in the state to establish 

$15/hr. minimum pay.  And we quietly funded the rebirth of 

Durham.

I thank the thousands of students, faculty, staff, alumni, parents 

and friends who made that happen. 

Emerson and Baden-Powell encouraged us to leave a place better 

than we found it.  I tried hard and hope I did.



Aerial photo of Chapel Drive with the Duke Chapel in the background
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Discussion of Financial Results for Fiscal Year 2020

The Discussion of Financial Results (the Discussion) includes highly 
summarized data and should, therefore, be read in conjunction 
with the accompanying consolidated financial statements, notes, and 
supplementary schedules. All figures presented within the Discussion 
are consolidated and inclusive of Duke University (the University) and 
Duke University Health System, Inc. (DUHS) and collectively referred 
to herein as Duke, unless specifically designated otherwise.

Net Assets

Duke’s consolidated net asset base declined $897 million in fiscal 2020 
to $14.4 billion as of June 30, 2020. The decline is primarily due to 
spending from our invested balances in excess of overall investment 
returns, as well as declines in the discount rates used to value certain 
long-term pension and postretirment obligations. Over the past ten (10) 
years, consolidated net assets have grown at a compound annual growth 
rate of 6% due primarily to investment returns, generous philanthropic 
support from our alumni and other donors, positive operating results 
of both DUHS and the University, and prudent management of our 
internal resources.

Consolidated Net Assets ($ in billions)

The following table summarizes the major components of net assets 
activity in fiscal 2020 and 2019:

The operating results of the University and DUHS are detailed 
independently later in the Discussion. Nonoperating activities of Duke 
resulted in a net decline of $914 million to the consolidated net asset 
base in fiscal 2020 (compared to a net increase of $45 million in fiscal 
2019) and include:

 ➢  Total investment returns, including the LTP and HSP, of $182 
million and $1.0 billion for fiscal 2020 and 2019, respectively, less 
amounts distributed to support operations of $664 million and $643 
million for fiscal 2020 and 2019, respectively. Duke’s investment 
programs and related outcomes are described in more detail within 
the “Investments/Endowments” segment of this Discussion.

 ➢  Restricted contributions primarily received for endowment and 
capital projects, net of amounts released from restrictions ($36 
million and $78 million for fiscal 2020 and 2019, respectively).

 ➢  Other pension and postretirement benefit plan changes, which 
reflect declines in the discount rates used to value those obliga-
tions.

 ➢  (Losses) gains from the University’s interests in perpetual trusts 
held by others, primarily The Duke Endowment. 

 ➢  Other nonoperating activities, including losses incurred on the 
early retirement of bonds by both the University and DUHS, in 
fiscal 2020.

Summary of Changes in Consolidated Net Assets  
(in millions)

 2020 2019

Operating results

University  $ 25 $ 60

Less: Operating support from DUHS  (110)  (89)

DUHS  102    241  

Consolidated operating results  17  212

Nonoperating results: 

Investment return, net of spending   (495)  347

Restricted contributions, net of amounts  
 released from restrictions   177  71

Other pension and postretirement  
 benefit plan changes    (490)   (259) 

(Losses) gains on interests in perpetual 
 trusts held by others  (31)  14

Other   (75)    (128)  

Change in net assets from 
 nonoperating activities  (914)  45

Change in consolidated net assets    (897)    257  

Total consolidated net assets  $ 14,365   $ 15,262 9.9 9.4
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University Operating Performance

The operating results of the University are presented in the supplemental 
Statements of Activities (Schedule 2 on page 44) following the 
notes to the consolidated financial statements. University operating 
activities primarily include all revenues and expenses that support 
education and research efforts, and are discussed in more detail in 
their respective segments of this Discussion.

The fiscal 2020 operating results of the University declined $35 
million compared to fiscal 2019, reflecting a 0.4% increase in 
operating expenses as well as a 0.7% decline in operating revenues.

Year-to-Year Change in University 
Operating Revenue and Expense (%)

The relatively high operating revenue increases shown above for 
fiscal 2016 and 2017 primarily reflect incremental investment support 
discussed in the “Investments/Endowments” section of this discussion. 
The fiscal 2020 decline reflects the impact of the COVID-19 global 
pandemic (COVID-19).  Prior to COVID-19, the University’s revenue 
growth was trending comparable to fiscal 2019. In March 2020, the 
University shut down campus operations, resulting in revenue losses 
in housing, dining, athletics and other auxiliary programs during the 
fourth quarter.

Total operating revenues for the University declined $23 million 
to $3.04 billion in fiscal 2020. The University’s major revenue 
components are summarized below: 

Fiscal 2020 University Operating Revenues by Source – 
$3.04 billion

 ➢  Grants and contracts revenue represents the largest component 
of University revenue ($1.2 billion and 40%). Revenue from 
these sources grew approximately 1% from fiscal 2019 levels, as 
covered in detail within the “Sponsored Programs” segment of this 
Discussion.

 ➢  Tuition and fees reflect gross tuition and fees net of student finan-
cial aid provided by the University. Gross tuition and fees ($886 
million) increased $21 million, or 2%, compared to the prior year, 
and student financial aid ($364 million) increased $16 million, or 
5%. Through the third quarter of fiscal 2020, tuition and fees and 
student aid growth was 5% and 6%, respectively. In March 2020, 
the University canceled all summer programs and camps that nor-
mally occur in the last quarter, which eliminated all tuition and fee 
revenue and corresponding financial aid.

 ➢  Investment return designated for current operations consists of 
endowment spending distributions, returns on other invested funds, 
and distributions from The Duke Endowment, and increased $21 
million, or 3%, in fiscal 2020. The changes in each component 
are covered in more detail within the “Investments/Endowments” 
segment of this Discussion.
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Operating expenses for the University increased $12 million to $3.02 
billion in fiscal 2020. The major components of University operating 
expenses are summarized below:

Fiscal 2020 University Operating Expenses – 
$3.02 billion

 ➢  Salaries, wages, and employee benefits represent $1.9 billion, 
or 62%, of the University’s operating expenses. Labor-related 
expenses increased $78 million, or 4%, in fiscal 2020. This increase 
primarily reflects fiscal 2020 merit-based salary increases for 
faculty and staff, as well as planned growth.  

 ➢  Depreciation expense represented 9% of total operating expenses 
in fiscal 2020, and increased $9 million compared to the prior year.  
Fiscal 2020 capital activity is covered in detail within the “Capital 
Spending and Debt” segment of this Discussion. 

 ➢  Other operating expenses represented $178 million, or 6%, of 
University operating expenses in fiscal 2020, and declined $57 
million, or 24% compared to the prior year. This includes various 
nonlabor expenses, most notably travel, entertainment, and public 
relations expenses, all of which were suspended with the campus 
shutdown in March 2020 due to COVID-19. 

DUHS Operating Performance

As detailed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, DUHS 
operates as a controlled affiliate of the University and manages all 
of Duke’s clinical health operations and facilities. The financial 
results and financial position of DUHS are consolidated into the 
financial statements of Duke under financial statement presentation 
requirements governing colleges and universities. This differs from 
financial statement presentation requirements governing health care 
organizations and used by DUHS in their separately issued financial 
statements. The fiscal 2020 net operating income of $125 million 
reported in DUHS’ separately-issued consolidated statement of 
operations represents a $137 million decline compared to fiscal 2019. 

DUHS’ fiscal 2020 net operating income was negatively impacted by 
the COVID-19 pandemic as elective and non-urgent procedures and 
surgeries were suspended beginning in mid-March through early-May 
at the request of North Carolina’s Department of Health and Human 
Services. While DUHS received and recognized Coronavirus Aid, 
Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act grants totaling $83 
million in fiscal 2020, the grants were insufficient to offset the shortfall 
in patient revenue and increased costs incurred due to the pandemic.

DUHS Net Operating Income and Cash Flow  
($ in millions)¹

Total DUHS operating revenue for fiscal 2020, which included $83 
million in CARES Act grants, increased $115 million, or 3%, over 
the prior year. Excluding the CARES Act grants, operating revenue 
increased 1%. The slight increase in revenue is driven by increased 
retail pharmacy revenue, largely due to higher reimbursement rates 
for specialty drugs, and a higher-acuity case mix offset by COVID-
19-related volume shortfalls. Inpatient volumes, measured in number 
of adult discharges, decreased 5% while the average daily census 
decreased 2%. Total outpatient volumes decreased 10%, reflecting 
a 13% decrease in emergency department visits, a 9% decrease in 
outpatient surgical and endoscopy procedures and a 10% decrease in 
all other outpatient visits. 

DUHS operating expenses increased $252 million, or 7%, in fiscal 
2020 compared to the prior year. The most significant increases were 
in labor costs which increased $163 million, or 10%; drugs, which 
increased $45 million, or 10%; and medical supplies, which increased 
$21 million, or 4%. The increase in labor costs reflect a 6% increase 
in the number of full-time employees (FTEs), as well as a 3% increase 
in the average salary per FTE. The increase in drugs and medical 
supplies is attributed to an increasing proportion of high-cost drugs 
and specialty supplies used to treat patients with more acute diagnoses.

DUHS continues to provide care to patients who meet certain criteria 
under its financial assistance policies without charge or at amounts less 
than its established rates. Because DUHS does not pursue collection 
of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported 

1  Certain components of nonoperating activities in the DUHS consolidated statement of operations and statements of cash flows are reclassified as operating items in Duke’s consolidated statements of 
activities and statements of cash flows in order to conform to financial statement presentation generally followed by colleges and universities. Interest payments related to derivative swaps ($10 million) 
represents the primary component reclassified in fiscal 2020. Duke’s consolidated statements of activities and cash flows include $102 million of net income from operations and $693 million of implied 
cash flows, respectively, from operations related to DUHS for fiscal 2020.

2  Includes $282 million of Medicare advance payments, $83 million of CARES grants, and the deferral of $20 million in payroll taxes owed as allowed by the CARES act
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as revenue or included in patient accounts receivable. In fiscal 2020, 
DUHS provided charity care with an estimated cost of $133 million, 
an increase of $15 million compared to fiscal 2019. Total community 
benefit as defined by and reported to the Internal Revenue Service 
was $344 million in fiscal 2020. Additionally, DUHS incurred costs 
totaling $390 million in 2020 for unreimbursed services provided 
under Medicare and costs of $19 million associated with uncollectible 
patient accounts, bringing its total investment in community benefits 
to $753 million in 2020. This represents an increase of 26% from the 
$597 million invested in fiscal 2019.

DUHS operating margins and positive cash flows from operating 
activities over the last ten (10) years, combined with returns on its 
invested reserves, allowed DUHS to make transfers to the University 
in support of the School of Medicine and other University functions of 
$1.5 billion during this time period. These transfers included a $510 
million non-recurring transfer of cash and investments to the School 
of Medicine on July 1, 2016 to fund certain quasi-endowments.  
DUHS continued its history of providing annual operating support 
for University-based medical faculty research and education with net 
transfers totaling $110 million to the School of Medicine in fiscal 
2020, also included in the $1.5 billion total above.

Investments/Endowments

Responsibility for managing Duke’s investment portfolio rests with 
DUMAC, Inc. (DUMAC), a separate nonprofit support corporation 
organized and controlled by Duke. DUMAC invests Duke’s assets 
across domestic and international asset groups, principally through 
investment advisory firms and partnerships. Growth of the investment 
and endowment base is a critical factor in maintaining Duke’s financial 
strength and flexibility to meet current needs and fund future initiatives.

Duke’s investment portfolio primarily consists of debt, equity, and other 
investments within the LTP and the HSP. Duke’s investments have grown 
significantly over the last ten (10) years and total approximately $14.5 
billion as of June 30, 2020. Duke’s endowment (including interests in 
perpetual trusts held by others), representing $8.5 billion of this total, 
supports the current and future operations of the schools, academic 
departments, libraries and other facilities, and student financial aid.

Growth of Investments and Endowment  
(June 30 values, $ in billions)

DUHS accounts for $4.3 billion of Duke’s cash and investment 
portfolio, which primarily represents unrestricted working capital, 
reinvested operating surpluses, and associated appreciation.

For fiscal 2020, the LTP, in which 98% of the endowment (excluding 
perpetual trusts) is invested, returned 0.7%. DUMAC seeks to achieve 
an annualized real rate of return of at least 5.0%, net of fees, to fund 
the LTP spending rate and to allow growth of the endowment after 
considering the effects of inflation.  The total return on the HSP, a more 
liquid fund managed for DUHS, was 1.0% in 2020.

Fiscal Year Investment Returns

    2016       2017       2018       2019      2020  

LTP  -2.6%  12.7%  12.9%  6.9%  0.7%

HSP  -3.3%  12.1%  11.4%  5.8%  1.0%

As Duke’s investment base has grown over the last ten (10) years, 
investment related support has become a larger contributor to the 
current operations of the University. Investment returns supporting 
operations includes endowment spending, withdrawals from quasi-
endowments, distributions from The Duke Endowment, and income 
from invested working capital that totaled $668 million in fiscal 2020.  
This is a $240 million, or 56%, increase from fiscal 2011 levels of 
investment support, and a $21 million, or 3% increase over fiscal 2019. 

Investment Return Supporting Current Operations  
($ in millions – University Only)

To balance current and future needs, the University employs investment 
and spending policies designed to provide an appropriate flow of 
income to the operating budget while preserving the future purchasing 
power of the endowment assets in perpetuity. The LTP spending rate is 
set by the administration and approved by the Board of Trustees. For 
fiscal 2020, the administration recommended and the Board approved 
a 3.0% increase in the spending rate for non-financial aid endowments 
while holding the spending rate flat for financial aid endowments to 
avoid downward pressure on future rates. The effective spending rates 
for fiscal 2020 – based on June 30, 2019 investment market values – 
were 5.1% for financial aid endowments and 3.9% for non-financial 
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aid endowments. The HSP is not subject to the University’s spending 
policies.

In addition, the Board authorizes the use of supplemental endowment 
distributions from quasi-endowments for special academic development 
initiatives and to support the operations and maintenance of certain 
facilities. These supplemental distributions have grown from $65 
million in fiscal 2011 to $216 million in fiscal 2020, due primarily to 
two quasi-endowment funds established by transfers from DUHS to the 
School of Medicine to provide annual academic support through 2036. 
In addition, the Board approved a $250 million liquidation from central 
unrestricted quasi-endowments to occur over six years beginning in 
fiscal 2016. The University withdrew $50 million of the $250 million 
in fiscal 2020.

Other investment income is another major component of investment 
returns supporting current operations ($176 million in fiscal 2020). 
Such support is generated through the corporate cash management 
strategies of Duke and is released under protocols approved by the 
Board of Trustees.

Other investment income increased $34 million compared to fiscal 
2019, primarily due to a fiscal 2020 liquidation of invested working 
capital in support of the University’s academic strategic plan, Together 
Duke. 

LTP Ten Year Annualized Investment Returns (%)

The graph above reflects a rolling ten-year average of investment 
returns. The spike in the ten-year annualized return in fiscal 2019 
reflects the removal of a 24.3% decline experienced in fiscal 2009.  
Absent the highest and lowest annual returns during this period (24.5% 
in fiscal 2011 and negative 2.6% in fiscal 2016), the LTP ten-year 
annualized investment return was 8.8%.

Sponsored Programs1 

The University conducts research in a collaborative interdisciplinary 
environment among its schools. The School of Medicine is one of the 
largest biomedical research enterprises in the country with programs 

focused on the causes, prevention, and treatment of human disease. 
Campus-based schools under the Provost continue to increase their 
research activity, primarily within Arts and Sciences, the Pratt School 
of Engineering, the Sanford School of Public Policy, and the Nicholas 
School of the Environment. 

The United States government, at 63%, is the largest source of grant 
and contract funding for the University, with 67% of this support from 
the Department of Health and Human Services, Duke’s cognizant 
agency. Since 2011, the University’s government grant and contract 
funding has grown 23%, reflecting the success of our faculty in 
pursuing support for their research. 

Total Grants, Contracts and Similar Agreements  
($ in millions)

Fiscal 2020 government sourced revenue was $753 million, a $17 
million, or 2%, increase compared to fiscal 2019.  The most notable 
increases were within the Pratt School of Engineering and the 
departments of Surgery and Psychiatry within the School of Medicine.

In addition to government sourced grants and contracts, Duke also 
received $375 million of research support from private sources in 
fiscal 2020, a decline of $6 million, or 2%, compared to fiscal 2019. 
This decline was primarily within the Duke Clinical Research Institute 
(DCRI) due to a shift from industry sponsored to government funded 
trials.  DCRI remains the world’s largest academic clinical research 
organization, generating roughly 21% of Duke’s total grant and contract 
revenue. 

Philanthropy

Contributions revenue reported within the consolidated financial 
statements is calculated based on generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP). This differs from philanthropic support reported 
by Duke according to the guidelines established by the Council for 
Advancement and Support of Education (CASE). CASE guidelines 
represent the philanthropy reporting standard for colleges and 
universities, and are based on cash collections. 

 Government Sources   Private Sources 
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1 Revenue provided by the Federal government to DUHS is covered in the DUHS Operating Performance section of this Discussion.
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Fundraising is an essential part of Duke’s revenue portfolio. Duke’s 
last fundraising campaign, Duke Forward, ended in June 2017, raising 
$3.85 billion, 18% over the goal. Duke Forward provided critical 
long-term support for the University, and established new annual cash 
receipts standards well in excess of $400 million (relative to historic 
highs of $380 million). 

In total, Duke received $518 million in philanthropic contributions 
between July 1, 2019 and June 30, 2020, a slight increase from fiscal 
2019. This level of giving includes support to the Annual Fund that 
reached a record high with contributions from over 59,000 alumni, 
parents, and friends of Duke. 

On a GAAP basis, Duke recorded $367 million in contributions 
revenue, including pledges, in fiscal 2020, a $77 million, or 27%, 
increase from fiscal 2019. 

Contributions (GAAP-basis, $ in millions)

A reconciliation of the CASE and GAAP totals is provided below  
(in millions): 

Cash gifts per CASE (cash basis) $ 518

Amounts included in grants and 
similar agreements (gifts per CASE)  (124)

Grants and gifts from The Duke Endowment  
(gifts per CASE)  (13)

Net fiscal 2020 change in pledges²  (14) 

Total consolidated contributions  
per GAAP statements $ 367 

Additional information on GAAP reporting of contributions revenue 
and contributions receivable is provided in Notes 2 and 6 of the 
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

For details on Duke’s goals and initiatives, and ways to give to Duke, 
visit http://giving.duke.edu.

Capital Spending and Debt

Over the last decade, the University and DUHS have made significant 
investments in land, buildings, and equipment. The University invested 
more than $1.7 billion over the last five years, impacting in excess 
of one million square feet of new or renovated living, teaching, and 
research space.  DUHS, while owned and controlled by the University, 
operates under a different business model and has different budgetary 
considerations. DUHS has invested almost $1.3 billion in property and 
equipment over the last five years, of which $751 million has occurred 
during the last two years.

Capital Spending ($ in millions)

Capital spending by the University in fiscal 2020 totaled $259 million, 
a 25% decline from fiscal 2019, and included significant investments 
in student life, education, and research. Noteworthy capital projects that 
were substantially completed include the new Engineering Building 
and new Chilled Water Plant #3. Other noteworthy construction activity 
included the completion of the new Interprofessional Health Education 
Building and the Hollows Residence Hall, as well as final site-work and 
landscaping surrounding the Craven Residence Hall.

 ➢   The new 150,000 square foot Engineering Building will provide 
research labs, active learning rooms, teaching labs, entrepreneurial 
collaboration, and office spaces.

 ➢  The new Chilled Water Plant #3 will provide the increased chilled 
water capacity necessary to address growth-driven demand across 
the University and Duke Hospital, with expected completion in 
December 2020.

 ➢  The new 103,000 square-foot Interprofessional Health Education 
Building replaces the existing Clipp building, and houses the 
School of Medicine’s growing Physical Therapy Program, the 
Department of Orthopaedic Surgery, and educational components 
of the School of Nursing.

 ➢  The new 265,000 square-foot Hollows Residence Hall, which 
opened to students for the fall 2019 semester, provides 700 beds 
in suite-style housing and enabled the demolition of student apart-
ments on Central Campus.

2 Includes changes to previously reported multi-year pledges, pledges receivable due to new multi-year commitments, and other fiscal 2020 adjustments.
³ DUHS capital spend amounts shown as reported in the separately issued DUHS consolidated financial statements.
4 Fiscal 2017 capital spend amount includes a $50 million purchase of an apartment building to support undergraduate housing.
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 ➢  Craven Residence Hall was among the first residential halls built on 
West Campus.  The complete renovation brought the facility up to 
modern standards while maintaining its historic character.

The University’s capital plan calls for $1.3 billion of additional 
spending over the next five (5) years, including continued investments 
in the sciences, as well as undergraduate and graduate student housing.

DUHS’ most recent five-year capital plan anticipated a total of $2.5 
billion in capital expenditures (fiscal 2020 through fiscal 2024). 
Entering fiscal 2021, DUHS focused more tightly on the upcoming 
year, when a number of multi-year projects are expected to be 
completed. The fiscal 2021 capital request total is approximately $750 
million and the net cash impact for the year is expected to approach 
$600 million. Key strategic projects expected to be completed during 
fiscal 2021 or shortly thereafter include: (1) the Duke University 
Hospital Central Tower to enable full utilization of licensed bed 
capacity and better serve patients, clinicians and staff (November 
2020); (2) a new Duke Raleigh Hospital inpatient bed tower and 
operating room (March 2021); (3) a new Duke Regional Hospital 
addition that consolidates behavioral health services for Durham 
County on the hospital campus in an efficient and modern new 
facility and the renovation and expansion of the existing emergency 
department (July 2021); and (4) other key ambulatory projects 
throughout Duke’s service area adding new or expanded sites enabling 
DUHS to reach additional communities and meet growing demand. 
This follows DUHS capital investment of almost $1.3 billion over the 
last five years, including $751 million during the last two years, much 
of which has been focused on the strategic projects discussed above. 

Both the University and DUHS have issued various forms of debt as 
a primary source of capital project funding. Formal comprehensive 
debt policies provide guidelines for the use of long-term financing, 
commercial paper, and derivative transactions (in the form of interest 
rate and other swaps) in order to optimize the debt portfolios.  Effective 
and responsible debt portfolio management enables the University and 
DUHS to execute their strategic plans for facilities while preserving 
working capital. The University and DUHS hold ratings of Aa1 and Aa2 
with Moody’s and AA+ and AA with Standard & Poor’s, respectively.

Outstanding Debt ($ in billions)

In May 2020, the University issued $1.3 billion in Series 2020A bonds, 
the proceeds of which were used to refund the Series 2015B and 
2014A-C bonds, as well as to reimburse cash for prior construction 
projects funded from working capital. The refunding resulted in a loss 
on extinguishment of debt of $50 million representing the write-off of 
unamortized premiums. 

In January 2020, DUHS issued $299 million in Series 2020 bonds.  
The proceeds were primarily used to meet the principal and interest 
payments of the Series 2012A bonds.  The refunding transaction 
resulted in a loss on extinguishment of debt of $10 million representing 
the write-off of the unamortized premium and bond issue costs and the 
escrow funding requirements for principal and interest payments in 
excess of the face value of the 2012A refunded bonds.   

Looking Ahead

Duke’s leaders remain focused on advancing our educational, research, 
and clinical missions and evolving our business model for the years 
ahead while being mindful of the rapidly evolving national and global 
public health and economic environments. This will be imperative in 
order to protect and advance Duke’s financial health and commitment 
to our highest priorities. These include:

 ➢  Assembling world-class teams, with an emphasis on strategic 
growth of the clinical enterprise, science and technology, and 
affordability and access, reflecting our on-going commitments to 
diversity and inclusion.

 ➢  Innovation in teaching and learning, necessary to enhance under-
graduate and graduate education. 

 ➢  Significant advances in patient care, including expanded access 
to telehealth and new digital health applications; successful val-
ue-based care programs delivering high-quality care and shared 
cost savings; and an expanded network to serve one of the fastest 
growing and most diverse populations in the country.

 ➢  Activating a world-wide network through alumni outreach and 
engagement.

 ➢  Completion of ongoing capital projects, particularly those support-
ing the sciences and our clinical mission.

The administration will continue to proactively address financial and 
other challenges by operating with a strong sense of fiscal responsibility 
and prudent decision making, while directing Duke’s resources to areas 
of highest priority and need.

5 Includes a finance lease for Duke Regional Hospital which has a balance of $147 million at June 30, 2020.
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(dollars in thousands) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 

Students:  

Undergraduate1  7,083  7,075  6,457  6,388  6,379  

Graduate and professional1  9,590  9,592  8,390  8,132  8,135 

Total fall enrollment  16,673  16,667  14,847  14,520  14,514 

Degrees conferred: 
Baccalaureate  1,869  1,856  1,814  1,848  1,823 

Masters  2,987  2,797  2,771  2,578  2,561 

Doctorate  922  898  893  885  872 

Total degrees conferred  5,778  5,551  5,478  5,311  5,256 

Research:

Grants, contracts and similar agreements:     

Federal government sources $ 777,480 $ 690,816 $ 639,825 $ 615,118 $ 562,730 

Other government sources  68,954  52,281  48,918  47,960  53,030 

Other  516,359  509,508  534,842  546,000  513,585 

Total grants, contracts and  
 similar agreements $ 1,362,793 $ 1,252,605 $ 1,223,585 $ 1,209,078 $ 1,129,345 

Patient Care:  

Discharges  66,561  70,200  68,699  68,483  66,085 

Patient days  431,216  436,616  418,466  410,620  390,561 

Surgical and endoscopy cases  90,781  98,697  95,618  92,185  90,809 

Outpatient visits  2,234,859  2,375,630  2,266,711  2,173,687  2,080,315 

Emergency room visits  166,263  187,429  186,239  187,234  186,209 

Endowment: 

Market value of endowment $ 8,474,071 $ 8,609,004 $ 8,524,846 $ 7,911,175 $ 6,839,780 

Financial aid spending rate  5.1%  5.2%  5.5%  5.9%  5.4% 

Non-financial aid spending rate  3.9%  3.9%  4.1%  4.6%  4.1% 

LTP rate of return²  0.7%  6.9%  12.9%  12.7%  (2.6%)

Faculty and Staff: 

Tenured and tenure track  1,697  1,689  1,669  1,670  1,714 

Non-tenure track  2,191  2,092  1,973  1,855  1,713 

Total regular rank faculty  3,888  3,781  3,642  3,525  3,427 

Staff  53,275  51,256  49,352  47,455  45,898 

Total employees  57,163  55,037  52,994  50,980  49,325 

Statistical Highlights

1 Beginning in fiscal 2019, student enrollment reflects changes in full-time equivalent calculations, which are consistent with the Integrated Postsecondary Education System (IPEDS).
² Net of external management fees but before internal costs.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees of Duke University: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Duke University, which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of activities
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Duke University as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis of Matters 

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, Duke University adopted Accounting 
Standards Update 2016-02, Leases, as amended, and Accounting Standards Update 2017-07, Compensation 
– Retirement Benefits: Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic 
Postretirement Benefit Cost, in 2020. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters. 
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Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole. The supplementary information included in schedules 1 through 3 is presented for the purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

September 29, 2020



Interprofessional Health Education building



Financial Statements 2019/2020 | 15

Consolidated Balance Sheets
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019  
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

 2020 2019

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 581,464 $ 686,899

Accounts receivable, net  746,646  815,842

Prepaid expenses, inventories, and other assets   257,332  236,768

Contributions receivable, net  308,033  330,767

Investments  14,527,869  14,046,939 

Land, buildings, and equipment, net  4,864,463  4,556,130

Operating lease right-of-use assets  1,034,694  –

Interests in perpetual trusts held by others  854,356  885,298

Total assets $ 23,174,857 $ 21,558,643

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued payroll $ 1,233,338 $ 905,771

Deferred revenues and deposits  222,787  215,538

Notes and bonds payable  4,475,693  3,853,357

Operating lease liabilities  1,052,556  –

Annuity and other split-interest obligations  60,408  61,082

Accrued postretirement/postemployment 
 and other benefit obligations  1,477,313  913,134

Other liabilities  287,740  348,256

Total liabilities  8,809,835  6,297,138

Net Assets: 

Without donor restrictions  7,941,340  8,731,389

With donor restrictions  6,423,682  6,530,116

Total net assets  14,365,022  15,261,505

Total liabilities and net assets $ 23,174,857 $ 21,558,643

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Activities
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

 2020 2019

Net assets without donor restrictions:

Operating revenues: 

Tuition and fees $ 523,862 $ 519,245

Grants, contracts and similar agreements:     

Government sources   846,434  743,097

The Private Diagnostic Clinic, PLLC   140,852  141,244

Other   375,507  368,264

 Total grants, contracts and similar agreements   1,362,793  1,252,605

Contributions  154,492  141,457

Investment return designated for current operations:

The Duke Endowment  12,500  12,500

Endowment spending  480,857  493,723

Other investment income  183,604  149,353

Total investment return designated for operations  676,961  655,576

Auxiliary enterprises  218,877  252,832

Patient service revenue, net  3,669,150  3,631,391

Other  233,755  253,429

Net assets released from restrictions  35,929  77,788

Total operating revenues  6,875,819  6,784,323

Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages  2,991,745  2,811,132

Employee benefits  775,416  710,359

Student aid  46,618  46,205

Other operating expenses  2,479,556  2,439,713

Interest  129,710  143,987

Depreciation and amortization  435,796  421,395

Total operating expenses  6,858,841  6,572,791

Operating surplus  16,978  211,532
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Consolidated Statements of Activities (continued)

 2020 2019

Nonoperating activities:

Net assets released from restrictions $ 34,727 $ 15,728

Investment return (less than) in excess of amounts 
 designated for current operations, net  (276,316)  241,904

Other pension and postretirement benefit changes  (490,076)  (258,546)

Other, net  (75,362)  (150,929)

Change in net assets without donor restrictions  
 from nonoperating activities  (807,027)  (151,843)

Change in net assets without donor restrictions  (790,049)  59,689

Net assets with donor restrictions:

Contributions   212,727  148,857

Net assets released from restrictions  (70,656)  (93,516)

Investment return (less than) in excess of amounts 
 designated for current operations, net  (218,251)  104,840

(Losses) gains on interests in perpetual trusts  
 held by others  (30,942)  13,784

Other, net  688  23,170

Change in net assets with donor restrictions  (106,434)  197,135

Change in total net assets  (896,483)  256,824

Net assets at beginning of year  15,261,505  15,004,681

Net assets at end of year $ 14,365,022 $ 15,261,505

Certain amounts disaggregated above  
 are presented below in the aggregate:

Contributions $ 367,219 $ 290,314

Investment return  182,394  1,002,320

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019  
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Change in net assets $ (896,483) $ 256,824

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets  
 to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization   432,189  412,934

Nonperiodic changes in defined benefit plans  520,163  295,555

Provision for bad debt  18,160  39,144 

Change in fair value of swap instruments  23,650  20,387

Loss on extinguishment of debt  60,471  – 

Loss on disposals of land, buildings, and equipment  844  2,216

Restricted contributions received for long-term  
 investment and capital projects  (235,461)  (213,887)

Investment return with donor restrictions  (428)  (7,176)

Net realized and unrealized gains on investments  (23,202)  (794,601)

Losses/(gains) on interests in perpetual trusts held by others  30,942  (13,784)

Change in:

Accounts receivable  67,041  (93,993)

Prepaid expenses, inventories, and other assets  (21,122)  (14,595)

Contributions receivable, net  4,574  25,886

Operating lease right-of-use assets  (1,034,694)  –

Accounts payable and accrued payroll  340,950  96,478

Deferred revenues and deposits  7,249  (3,707)

Annuity and other split-interest obligations  (674)  1,335

Accrued postretirement/postemployment 
 and other benefit obligations  44,016  18,120

Operating lease liabilities  1,052,556  –  

Other liabilities  (84,166)  58,271

Net cash provided by operating activities  306,575  85,407
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

 2020 2019

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Purchases of investments  (15,694,215)  (12,609,320)

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments  15,236,487  13,109,126

Purchases of land, buildings, and equipment   (728,827)  (763,200)

Disbursements for loans to students  (3,183)  (3,009)

Repayments of loans by students  5,338  6,820

Change in deposits with bond trustees  558    1,630

Net cash used in investing activities  (1,183,842)  (257,953)

Cash flows from financing activities:    

Restricted contributions received for long-term 
 investment and capital projects  235,461  213,887

Investment return with donor restrictions  428  7,176

Principal payments on notes and bonds payable  (985,754)  (25,867)

Proceeds from borrowings  1,512,373  –

Proceeds from finance leases  15,794  –

Payments on finance leases  (6,470)  –

Net cash provided by financing activities  771,832  195,196

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  (105,435)  22,650

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  686,899  664,249

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 581,464 $ 686,899

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Change in accounts payable for land, buildings, and equipment  $ (13,383) $ 9,031

Cash paid for interest (net of amounts capitalized)  120,357  138,747

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

1. Overview of Duke University

Duke University, a North Carolina nonprofit corporation, is a 
private, coeducational institution located primarily in Durham, North 
Carolina, which owns and operates educational and research facilities 
(the University). Duke University Health System, Inc. (DUHS), a 
North Carolina nonprofit corporation, is a controlled affiliate of the 
University. Collectively, the University and DUHS are referred to 
herein as “Duke.” The University is governed by a Board of Trustees 
(the Board) with thirty-seven members, consisting of the President of 
the University and thirty-six members representing private, public, and 
community interests. 

The University’s programs include undergraduate and graduate 
programs in Arts and Sciences, Engineering, Nursing, and Public 
Policy, and professional schools in Business, Divinity, Environment, 
Law, Medicine, and Nursing, as well as programs in Allied Health. 

DUHS operates a health care system consisting principally of:

 �  Duke University Hospital – a quaternary care teaching hospital 
located on the campus of Duke in Durham, North Carolina, licensed 
for 979 acute care and specialty beds, providing patient care 
and serving as a site for medical education and clinical research 
provided by the Duke University School of Medicine (School of 
Medicine).

 �  Duke Regional Hospital – a full-service community hospital 
located in Durham, North Carolina, licensed for 369 acute care 
beds. Duke Regional is owned by Durham County, North Carolina 

and leased to the Durham County Hospital Corporation, which 
has in turn subleased Duke Regional Hospital to DUHS for the 
identical duration under a forty (40) year automatically renewing 
“evergreen” lease.

 �  Duke Raleigh Hospital – a community hospital located in Raleigh, 
North Carolina, licensed for 186 acute care beds, and providing 
patient care.

 �  Duke University Affiliated Physicians, Inc. (DUAP) – a North 
Carolina nonprofit corporation, doing business as Duke Primary 
Care, consisting of twenty-eight (28) primary care physician prac-
tices located in Alamance, Chatham, Durham, Franklin, Granville, 
Orange, Vance, and Wake Counties, nine (9) urgent care centers 
located in Durham, Orange, and Wake Counties, and seven (7) 
diabetes education sites in Durham, Vance, and Wake Counties 
co-located in primary care sites and three (3) behavioral health sites 
in Durham, Granville and Wake counties co-located in primary 
care sites.

 �  Durham Casualty Company, Ltd. (DCC) – a wholly owned sub-
sidiary of DUHS, domiciled in Bermuda, insuring a portion of the 
medical malpractice risks and patient general liability, privacy/cyber 
liability, and international liability risks of DUHS clinical providers 
and The Private Diagnostic Clinic, PLLC (PDC) (see Note 14).  

The consolidated financial statements include the University, DUHS 
and all other operating entities over which Duke has control. 

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements of Duke have been prepared on 
the accrual basis in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) and with the provisions of the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 
958, Not-for-Profit Entities.

Based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions, Duke 
classifies resources into two categories: without donor restrictions and 
with donor restrictions. 

Net assets without donor restrictions are free of donor-imposed 
restrictions. All revenues, gains, and losses that are not restricted by 
donors are included in this classification. All expenses are reported as 
decreases in net assets without donor restrictions.

Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions that will be met either by actions of Duke or the passage 
of time. These net assets include donor restricted endowments, 
unconditional pledges, split-interest agreements, and interests in 
perpetual trusts held by others. Generally, the donors’ imposed 
restrictions of these assets permit Duke to use all or part of the  
 

income earned on related investments only for certain general or 
specific purposes. 

Expirations of donor restrictions on net assets (i.e., the donor stipulated 
purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has 
elapsed) are reported as net assets released from restrictions in 
the consolidated statements of activities. Contributions, including 
unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenue in the period 
received. Contributions for acquisition or construction of plant facilities 
are released from restrictions in the period in which the assets are 
placed in service within the nonoperating section on the statements of 
activities. Contributions which impose restrictions that are met in the 
same fiscal year they are received are reported as increases in net assets 
without donor restrictions.

Operating results (change in net assets without donor restrictions from 
operating activity) in the consolidated statements of activities reflect all 
transactions that change net assets without donor restrictions, except for 
contributions for plant facilities (released), investment return in excess 
of or less than amounts designated for current operations, other pension 
and postretirement benefit plan changes, changes in the fair value of 
debt-related derivative instruments, losses on the extinguishment of 
debt, and certain nonrecurring items.
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Fair Value Measurements
Fair value measurements reflected in the consolidated financial 
statements represent the price that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. GAAP provides a hierarchy that 
prioritizes the inputs to fair value measurements based on the extent to 
which inputs to valuation techniques are observable in the marketplace. 
The hierarchy assigns a higher priority to observable inputs that reflect 
verifiable information obtained from independent sources, and a lower 
priority to unobservable inputs that would reflect Duke’s assumptions 
about how market participants would value an asset or liability based on 
the best information available. Fair value measurements must maximize 
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable 
inputs.

The three levels of the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value 
are as follows:

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that are available at the measurement date.

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly at the measurement date.

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, used in 
situations in which little or no market activity exists for the asset or 
liability at the measurement date.

The categorization of fair value measurements by level of the hierarchy 
is based upon the lowest level input that is significant to the overall fair 
value measurement for a given asset or liability.

In the event that changes in the inputs used in the fair value 
measurement of an asset or liability result in a transfer of the fair value 
measurement to a different categorization (e.g., from Level 3 to Level 
2), such transfers between fair value categories are recognized at the 
end of the reporting period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents include assets invested in the Short Term Account 
(STA), all of which can be liquidated within thirty (30) days. Duke 
utilizes the STA to fund daily cash needs, and such assets, reported 
at fair value, primarily consist of short-term U.S. Treasury securities, 
other short-term, highly-liquid investments, and certain fixed income 
securities. Cash and cash equivalents that are managed as part of 
Duke’s investments are reported within investments on the consolidated 
balance sheets and excluded from cash in the consolidated statements 
of cash flows, as these funds are not used for operating needs.

Prepaid Expenses, Inventories, and Other Assets
Prepaid expenses, inventories, and other assets primarily represent 
inventories of DUHS, which are valued at the lower of average cost or 
net realizable value.

Contributions Receivable
Pledges that represent unconditional promises to give are recognized 
at fair value as contributions with donor restrictions in the period 
such promises are made by donors. Contributions are discounted at 
a risk-adjusted rate commensurate with the duration of the donor’s 
payment plan. Amortization of the discounts is recorded as contribution 

revenue. Allowance is made for uncollectible contributions based upon 
the administration’s expectations regarding collection of outstanding 
promises to give and past collection experience. 

The methodology for calculating the allowance for uncollectible 
contributions is based on the administration’s review of individually 
significant outstanding pledges, analysis of the aging of payment 
schedules for all outstanding pledges, as well as other factors including 
current economic conditions.

In contrast to unconditional promises as described above, conditional 
promises are not recorded until donor conditions are met.

Investments
DUMAC, Inc. (DUMAC), a separate nonprofit support corporation 
organized and controlled by the University, is responsible for managing 
investment assets for Duke, The Duke Endowment (see Note 14) and 
the Employees’ Retirement Plan of Duke University (the ERP). 

Valuation – Investments are recorded at estimated fair value. For 
investments made directly by Duke whose values are based on 
quoted market prices in active markets, the market price of the 
investment is used to report fair value. For shares in mutual funds, 
fair values are based on share prices reported by the funds as of the 
last business day of the fiscal year. Duke’s interests in alternative 
investment funds such as fixed income, equities, hedged strategies, 
private capital, and real assets are generally reported at the net asset 
value (NAV) reported by the fund managers. Unless it is probable 
that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount 
other than NAV, Duke has concluded, as a practical expedient, that 
the NAV approximates fair value.

Risks – Duke’s investments are exposed to several risks, including 
liquidity, currency, interest rate, credit, and market risks.

Duke attempts to manage these risks through diversification,  
ongoing due diligence of fund managers, and monitoring of economic 
conditions. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment 
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values 
of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such 
changes could materially affect the amounts reported in Duke’s 
consolidated financial statements.

Derivatives are used by Duke and external investment managers 
to manage market risks. The most common derivative strategies 
engaged in are total return swaps, credit default swaps, futures and 
forward contracts, and options. These derivative instruments are 
recorded at their respective fair values (see Note 13).

Investment Pools – Duke utilizes investment pools known as the 
University’s Long Term Pool (LTP) and the Health System Pool 
(HSP) to make University and DUHS investments in diversified 
portfolios of debt, equity, and other investments. The HSP is 
structured to provide more liquidity for DUHS than is available 
within the LTP. Both the LTP and HSP are included in investments 
on the consolidated balance sheets. 

Reporting – Income and realized gains (losses) on investments 
of working capital are reported as investment return included in 
operating revenues. Any excess (deficit) of income and realized and 
unrealized gains (losses) earned on investments above (below) the 
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spending rate (see Note 9), including split-interest agreements, are 
reported as nonoperating revenues. Investment management fees are 
netted against investment returns.

Land, Buildings, and Equipment
Land, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost at the date of 
acquisition or fair value at the date of donation. Property and equipment 
under finance leases are initially valued and recorded based on the 
present value of minimum lease payments. Useful lives range from 
5 to 25 years for land improvements, 10 to 80 years for buildings 
and utilities, 5 to 10 years for computer software, 3 to 20 years for 
equipment, motor vehicles, furniture and vessels, and 1 year for library 
acquisitions. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the 
assets’ estimated useful lives, except for leasehold improvements and 
property and equipment held under finance leases, which are amortized 
over the shorter of the expected useful life of the asset or term of the 
related lease. Depreciation is not recorded on purchases of land, art 
collections, rare books, and construction in progress. 

Conditional asset retirement obligations related to legal requirements 
to perform certain future activities associated with the retirement, 
disposal, or abandonment of assets are accrued utilizing site specific 
surveys to estimate the net present value for applicable future costs 
(e.g., asbestos abatement or removal). Duke reviews long-lived assets 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An 
impairment charge is recognized when the fair value of the asset or 
group of assets is less than the carrying value.

Lease right-of-use assets
Operating leases as a lessee are included in operating lease right-of-use 
assets and operating lease liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. 
The assets and liabilities associated with finance leases as a lessee are 
included in land, buildings, and equipment, net, and notes and bonds 
payable, respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets. 

Right-of-use assets represent Duke’s right to use an underlying  
asset for the lease term. Lease obligations represent Duke’s liability 
to make lease payments arising from the lease. Operating and finance 
lease right-of-use assets and related obligations are recognized at 
commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over 
the lease term discounted using an appropriate incremental borrowing 
rate. The commencement date is when Duke either takes possession 
of the asset, or in the case of real estate leases, when the landlord 
makes the building available for use. The incremental borrowing 
rate is based on the information available at commencement date in 
determining the present value of lease payments. The value of an option 
to extend or terminate a lease is reflected to the extent it is reasonably 
certain management will exercise that option. Lease expense for lease 
payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
Interest expense is recognized as a component of the lease payment for 
finance leases.

Interests in Perpetual Trusts Held by Others  
and Split-Interest Agreements
Duke is the beneficiary of certain perpetual trusts held and administered 
by outside trustees, including The Duke Endowment (see Note 14). 
These trust interests are reported at fair value, based on the value of 
the underlying assets, which approximates the present value of future 

income from these trusts. As such, these assets fall within Level 3 of 
the hierarchy of fair value inputs. Distributions from these trusts are 
recorded as investment return designated for current operations. 

Duke’s split-interest agreements with donors consist primarily of 
irrevocable charitable remainder trusts for which Duke serves as trustee. 
Assets held in these trusts are included in investments. Contribution 
revenues are recognized at the date the trusts are established after 
recording liabilities for the present value of the estimated future 
payments to be made to the donors or other beneficiaries. Annuity and 
other split-interest liabilities are recorded at their present value.

Debt-Related Derivative Instruments
Duke utilizes derivative instruments in a limited manner outside of 
its investment portfolio. As described in Note 13, interest rate swap 
agreements are used to manage interest rate risk associated with 
variable rate bond obligations. These instruments are reported in other 
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. Fair value is 
estimated based on pricing models that utilize significant observable 
inputs, such as relevant interest rates, that reflect assumptions market 
participants would use in pricing the instruments. As such, these 
liabilities fall within Level 2 of the hierarchy of fair value inputs. The 
change in fair value is included as a gain or loss in other nonoperating 
activities on the consolidated statements of activities. The net settlement 
amount incurred on the swaps is included in interest expense on the 
consolidated statements of activities. 

Refundable Federal Student Loans
Funds provided by the United States Government (U.S. Government) 
under the Federal Perkins, Nursing, and Health Professions Student 
Loan programs are loaned to qualified students and may be reloaned 
after collection. These funds are ultimately refundable to the U.S. 
Government. The related balances of $21,045 and $29,927 at June 30, 
2020 and 2019, respectively, are included in other liabilities on the 
consolidated balance sheets.

Charity Care
DUHS provides services at no charge or at a substantially discounted 
rate to patients who are approved under the guidelines of its financial 
assistance policy. DUHS does not pursue collection of amounts 
determined to qualify as charity care. Services qualifying for charity 
care consideration include emergent and medically necessary services 
as determined by a DUHS physician. Patient household income in 
relation to the federal poverty guidelines is included in the determination 
for charity care qualification. While charity care is excluded from net 
patient service revenue and receivables, DUHS maintains records to 
identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. These records 
include the amount of charges foregone and estimated costs incurred 
for services and supplies furnished under its financial assistance policy 
and other equivalent service statistics. Costs incurred are estimated 
based on the ratio of total operating expenses to gross charges applied 
to charity care charges.

Income Taxes
Duke is tax-exempt as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code). As such, Duke is 
exempt from federal income taxes to the extent provided under Section 
501 of the Code. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were no material 
uncertain tax positions. 
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Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act
On March 27, 2020, the U.S. Congress passed the Coronavirus 
Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, which provided 
economic assistance for certain businesses and individuals. Due to 
COVID-19, DUHS suspended non-emergent and non-critical surgeries, 
procedures, and appointments beginning in mid-March through early-
May of 2020.  Under provisions of the CARES Act, DUHS recognized 
$83,470 in relief funds which is reported as government grant revenue 
in the consolidated statement of activities. Additionally, as of June 
30, 2020, Duke recognized $8,440 related to Employee Retention 
Tax credits that is reported as accounts receivable on the consolidated 
balance sheet and government sources revenue on the consolidated 
statement of activities. As allowed by the CARES Act, at June 30, 
2020, Duke has deferred payment of $41,242 for the employer portion 
of Social Security Payroll tax, which is included in accounts payable 
and accrued payroll on the consolidated balance sheet. Fifty percent 
of the deferred tax credit must be paid by December 31, 2021 with the 
remainder by December 31, 2022.

DUHS also received $282,129 in advance payments from the Centers 
for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) in April 2020, which is 
included in accounts payable and accrued payroll on the consolidated 
balance sheets. CMS has indicated they will begin recouping these 
advance payments in fiscal 2021 against future Medicare claims, 
and DUHS will reduce the liability over time as Medicare claims for 
services are provided during the recoupment period.

New Accounting Pronouncements
In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), as amended. ASU 2016-02 
requires recognition of rights and obligations arising from lease 
contracts as assets and liabilities on the balance sheet. Duke applied 
the “package of practical expedients” allowing entities to not reassess 
previous conclusions on 1) if existing contracts contain a lease, 2)
the classification of existing leases, and 3) initial direct costs. Duke 
adopted ASU 2016-02 in fiscal 2020 under the modified prospective 
approach and recognized $905,267 in operating lease right-of-use 
assets and operating lease liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. 
Upon adoption of ASU 2016-02, there was no material change to the 
consolidated net assets.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash 
Flows (Topic 230) – Restricted Cash.  ASU 2016-18 requires that the 
statement of cash flows includes the changes in restricted cash during 
the periods presented.  It also requires additional disclosure of the 
nature of restrictions on cash and cash equivalents. Duke adopted ASU 
2016-18 in fiscal 2020 with no significant impact to total cash and cash 
equivalents presented in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-07, Compensation 
– Retirement Benefits (Topic 715): Improving the Presentation of 
Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit  
Cost. ASU 2017-07 requires the service cost component of net 
periodic benefit costs for pension and other postretirement benefits be 
presented as a component part of employee benefit expense. The other 
components of net periodic benefit costs, such as interest, expected 
return on plan assets, and amortization of other actuarially determined 
amounts, are required to be presented as a nonoperating change in net 
assets without donor restrictions. Duke adopted ASU 2017-07 in fiscal 
2020 under the modified retrospective approach, which resulted in a 
$37,009 increase in employee benefits expense with a corresponding 
increase in net periodic benefit income other than service cost for the 
year ended June 30, 2019. 

Use of Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses 
during the reporting period, as well as the disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities. Actual results ultimately could differ from the 
administration’s estimates.

Subsequent Events
Duke has evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date 
through September 29, 2020, the date on which the consolidated 
financial statements were issued. No material subsequent events were 
identified for recognition or disclosure.

3. Revenue Recognition

Duke’s significant revenue recognition policies are: 

Tuition and fees – Student tuition and fees are earned and recognized 
as revenue during the year that the related academic services are 
rendered. Student tuition and fees received in advance of services to 
be rendered are recorded as deferred revenue. Student aid provided 
by Duke for tuition and fees is reflected as a reduction of tuition and 
fees revenue at published rates, and does not include payments made 
to students for services rendered to Duke. 

The following table provides the components of tuition and fees for 
fiscal 2020 and 2019:

 2020   2019  

Tuition and fees, at published rates $ 888,035 $ 867,132

Less student aid   (364,173)    (347,887) 

Tuition and fees $ 523,862  $ 519,245 

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, Duke had $37,935 and $43,837, 
respectively, of deferred tuition and fees that will be recognized in 
the subsequent fiscal year when the programs occur.
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Grants and contracts – In accordance with ASU 2018-08, grants 
and contracts awarded by federal and other sponsors, including 
facilities and administrative (F&A) cost recovery, which are generally 
considered nonreciprocal transactions restricted by sponsors for 
certain purposes, are recognized as revenue when qualifying 
expenditures are incurred and conditions under the agreements are 
met. Duke has elected the simultaneous release policy available 
under ASU 2018-08, which allows a not-for-profit organization 
to recognize a restricted contribution directly in net assets without 
donor restrictions if the restriction is met in the same period that the 
revenue is recognized. F&A cost recovery represents reimbursement, 
primarily from the federal government, of F&A costs on sponsored 
activities. Duke’s federal F&A cost recovery rate for research was 
61.0% and 60.0% in fiscal 2020 and 2019, respectively.

In accordance with ASU 2014-09, revenue from exchange grants and 
contracts is recognized as Duke substantially meets the performance 
obligations contained in the agreement with the customer. 

Duke recognized grants and contracts revenues as follows for the 
years ended June 30:

  2020 2019   

Provided by:  

Federal government sources $   777,480  $   690,816 

Other government sources  68,954    52,281 

The Private Diagnostic Clinic, PLLC   140,852    141,244 

Other  375,507      368,264 

Total grants, contracts  
and similar agreements $  1,362,793 $  1,252,605

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, Duke had unexpended grant 
awards of $153,667 and $134,652, respectively, for which revenue 
will be recognized when the conditions on the awards are met or 
the performance obligations have been met. In fiscal 2020, Duke 
recognized $46,470 of revenue from grants that was previously 
deferred. Conditional awards from federal and other sponsors 
outstanding as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 were $757,100 and 
$586,263, respectively.

Net patient service revenue – Net patient service revenue relates to 
contracts with patients in which the performance obligations are to 
provide health care services to patients. DUHS recognizes revenues 
over time as services (inputs) are provided to patients in the period in 
which services are rendered. DUHS deems using this input method 
provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of services to the patient 
over the performance obligation period.

The contractual relationships with patients usually involve a third-
party payor, and transaction prices for the services provided are 
dependent upon the terms provided by or negotiated with third-party 
payors. DUHS has agreements with third-party payors that provide 
for payments to DUHS at amounts that are generally less than its 
established rates. DUHS determines the transaction price based 
on its established charges for goods and services less explicit and 
implicit price concessions. Explicit price concessions are contractual 
adjustments provided to third-party payors and published policy 
discounts applied to uninsured patients. Implicit price concessions 
represent differences between amounts billed and the estimated 
consideration DUHS expects to receive from patients, which are 
primarily based on historical collection experience. DUHS generally 
bills third-party payors and patients within five days after services 
are rendered and/or patients are discharged from the hospital. 
Accordingly, net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated 
net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others, 
including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement 
agreements with third-party payors. Adjustments are accrued on 
an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered 
and retroactively adjusted in future periods as changes to estimates 
become known and tentative and final settlement adjustments are 
identified.

Auxiliary enterprises – Auxiliary enterprises include athletics, 
residence halls, dining services, parking, and retail stores, which 
furnish goods and services to students, faculty, staff, and in some 
cases, the general public. Revenues from athletics ticket sales, media 
rights, licensing and other contracts are received and recognized when 
the goods and services are rendered, and typically occur in the same 
fiscal year. Charges to students for campus residence, dining and 
other student services are substantially billed and recognized prior to 
the end of each semester. Any prepayments for services are reported 
as deferred revenue until such time as the revenue has been earned.

Other revenue – Other revenue primarily includes design and 
delivery revenue related to executive education programs, billing 
and collection services provided to affiliated organizations, and 
royalty revenue from the licensing of intellectual property. Revenues 
from design services are recognized over the time of the project, and 
program delivery revenue is recognized at a point in time when the 
course delivery occurs. Royalty revenue is recognized as payments 
are received. Billing and collection fees are recognized based on 
actual price/expense incurred.
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4. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year of June 30 are as follows:

 2020 2019

Total assets  $ 23,174,857 $ 21,558,643

Less:     

  Endowment funds – including perpetual trusts  8,474,071  8,609,004

  Annuities, trusts and other illiquid investments  5,816,264  5,655,065

  Land, buildings and equipment, net  4,864,463  4,556,130 

  Operating lease right-of-use assets  1,034,694  –  

  Contributions receivable and other assets  666,219  656,096

Financial assets available within one year $ 2,319,146 $ 2,082,348

Duke manages its financial assets to be available as its operating 
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. In addition, 
Duke invests cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term 
investments or fixed income securities. To supplement working capital 
and investment commitments, Duke had line of credit agreements 
totaling $215,000 and $275,000 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively, with no outstanding borrowings under these agreements. 
The line of credit agreements have varying expiration dates from 
fiscal 2021 to 2023. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the amounts 

available through Duke’s tax-exempt and taxable commercial paper 
program are $200,000 and $300,000, respectively. The outstanding 
amount was $94,022 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019. Additionally, as 
of June 30, 2020 and 2019, Duke had board-designated endowments 
and other investments of $4,659,368 and $4,871,524. Although Duke 
does not intend to spend from these investments, other than amounts 
appropriated for general expenditure as part of its annual budget 
approval and appropriation process, they could be made available if 
necessary, subject to liquidity of the underlying investments.

5. Accounts Receivable, net

Accounts receivable consists of the following at June 30:

 2020 2019

Patient receivables  $ 430,091 $  460,543

Sponsored program receivables      148,017  138,210

Student loan receivables   25,636  28,460

Other receivables   142,902  188,629

Accounts receivable, net $ 746,646 $ 815,842

Concentration of Credit Risk
DUHS grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom 
are insured under third-party payor agreements. The related gross 
receivables at June 30, 2020 included approximately 40% and 48% 
from commercial payors and U.S. Government sources, respectively, 
and at June 30, 2019 included approximately 41% and 48% from 
commercial payors and U.S. Government sources, respectively. 

6. Contributions Receivable, net

Contributions receivable are summarized as follows at June 30:

 2020 2019

Unconditional promises expected  
to be collected in:

Less than one year  $ 129,541 $  132,366

Between one year and five years   188,360  203,970

More than five years   9,790   19,589 

Gross contributions receivable  327,691  355,925

Allowance for uncollectible amounts  (11,731)  (10,713)

Unamortized discount at rates 
 ranging from 0.1% to 7.5%  (7,927)   (14,445) 

Contributions receivable, net $ 308,033    $ 330,767   

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the 10 largest outstanding donor pledge 
balances represented 48% and 45%, respectively, of Duke’s gross 
contributions receivable.

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, Duke had also received bequest  
intentions and conditional promises to give of  $300,307 and $273,716, 
respectively. These intentions and conditional promises to give are not 
recognized as assets or revenues in the consolidated financial statements. 
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7. Investments

The fair value of investments consists of the following at June 30:

 2020 2019

Short-term investments $ 1,405,654 $ 674,514

Fixed income  1,792,551  1,544,781

Equities  1,888,219  2,218,572

Hedged strategies  3,218,845  3,457,285 

Private capital  4,174,217  3,878,606

Real assets  1,629,479  1,980,732

Other  418,904  292,449

Total investments $ 14,527,869  $ 14,046,939

The composition of Duke’s investments are as follows: 

 2020 2019

LTP $ 9,694,555 $ 10,038,663

HSP  3,205,233  3,385,545

Nonpooled  1,628,081  622,731

Total investments $ 14,527,869   $ 14,046,939

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, ($174,001) and $9,362, respectively, was 
(held) posted as collateral for derivatives and thus not readily available 
for use. Collateral held is included in short-term investments.

Duke’s investment classes are described in further detail below. Classes 
include direct holdings, which are generally marketable securities, 
and interests in funds for which the related investment strategies are 
described. 

Short-term investments includes cash collateral, money market funds, 
and other highly liquid debt securities with an aggregate duration of 
less than a year. 

Fixed income includes U.S. Treasury and agency debt, as well as non-
government domestic and international fixed income securities, funds 
holding similar securities, and debt-based derivatives. 

Equities includes domestic and international stocks, equity-based 
derivatives and interests in funds that invest predominantly long but 
also short stocks. Exposure by market is approximately: 25% domestic, 
30% developed international, 25% emerging international, and 20% 
global. 

Hedged strategies primarily includes interests in funds that invest both 
long and short in U.S. and non-U.S. stocks, credit-oriented securities, 
and arbitrage strategies. Approximately 80% of the hedged strategies 
portfolio is invested through equity oriented strategies with the balance 
split between multi-strategy and credit strategies funds and accounts. 
Virtually all of Duke’s investments in these funds are redeemable, 
and the underlying assets of the funds are predominately marketable 
securities and derivatives.  

Private capital primarily includes interests in funds or partnerships 
that hold illiquid investments in venture capital, buyouts, and credit. 
These funds typically have periods of 10 or more years during 
which committed capital may be drawn. Distributions are received 
through liquidation of the underlying assets of the funds, which  
are anticipated to occur over the next 4 to 10 years. Certain private 
placement securities may also be held. 

Real assets includes interests in funds or partnerships that hold illiquid 
investments in residential and commercial real estate, oil and gas 
production, energy, other commodities, and related services businesses. 
These funds typically have periods of 10 or more years during 
which committed capital may be drawn. Distributions are received 
through liquidations of the underlying assets of the funds, which are 
anticipated to occur over the next 5 to 12 years. Additionally, certain 
liquid commodity- and real estate-related equities, private placement 
securities and related derivatives are included. 

Other primarily includes other derivative instruments.

The following is a summary of the levels within the fair value hierarchy for Duke’s investments at June 30:

    Investments 
Fair Value as of June 30, 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 reported at NAV¹ Total

Short-term investments $ 1,331,480 $ 74,174 $ – $ – $ 1,405,654

Fixed income  297,575  1,288,411  34,834  171,731  1,792,551

Equities  1,275,234  151,524  –  461,461  1,888,219

Hedged strategies  177,577  (2,178)  –  3,043,446  3,218,845

Private capital  3,747  –  405,079  3,765,391  4,174,217

Real assets  34,616  36,523  40,368  1,517,972  1,629,479

Other  126,439  282,772  –  9,693  418,904

Total investments $ 3,246,668 $ 1,831,226 $ 480,281 $ 8,969,694 $ 14,527,869

1  Certain investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient have not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value 
amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the consolidated balance sheets.
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As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, redemption frequency and the corresponding notice period for all investments are as follows:

 Redemption frequency (in days) Redemption 
Asset Class (if currently eligible)¹ notice period (in days)

Short-term investments daily 1

Fixed income 1 to 30 1 to 30

Equities  1 to 90  1 to 90

Hedged strategies  30 to >365  2 to 100

Private capital  N/A  N/A

Real assets  N/A  N/A

Other  N/A  N/A

The following tables present additional information about Level 3 investments. Both observable and unobservable inputs may be used to determine 
the fair value of positions that Duke has classified within the Level 3 category. As a result, the unrealized gains and losses for assets within the Level 
3 category in the table below may include changes in fair value that were attributable to both observable and unobservable inputs.

  Net realized      
 Balance as of and unrealized   Net transfers Balance as of 
 June 30, 2019  (losses) gains  Purchases Sales out June 30, 2020

Fixed income $ 39,932 $ (1,747) $ 41,069 $ (44,420) $ – $ 34,834

Equities  200,000  64,796  –  (264,796)  –  –

Private capital  386,090  32,944  15,835  (29,753)  (37)  405,079

Real assets  42,238  (11,323)  15,851  (6,398)  –  40,368

Total Level 3 investments $ 668,260 $ 84,670 $ 72,755 $ (345,367) $ (37) $ 480,281

  Net realized 
 Balance as of and unrealized   Net transfers Balance as of 
 June 30, 2018  (losses) gains  Purchases Sales out June 30, 2019

Fixed income $ – $ (675)  $ 54,835  $ (14,228) $ – $ 39,932

Equities  86,382  113,618  –  –  –  200,000

Private capital  315,898  96,743  32,269  (46,863)  (11,957)  386,090

Real assets  42,743  (1,514)  1,678  (669)  –  42,238

Total Level 3 investments $ 445,023 $ 208,172 $ 88,782 $ (61,760) $ (11,957) $ 668,260

1 Based on current terms, it is possible that these redemption rights may be restricted or eliminated by the funds in the future in accordance with the underlying fund agreement. 

    Investments 
Fair Value as of June 30, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 reported at NAV¹ Total

Short-term investments $ 372,034 $ 302,480 $ – $ – $ 674,514

Fixed income  80,792  1,260,149  39,932  163,908  1,544,781

Equities  1,410,099  35,449  200,000  573,024  2,218,572

Hedged strategies  37,698  –  –  3,419,587  3,457,285

Private capital  7,935  –  386,090  3,484,581  3,878,606

Real assets  34,502  19,822  42,238  1,884,170  1,980,732

Other   70,345   213,243   –   8,861   292,449

Total investments  $  2,013,405  $  1,831,143  $  668,260  $  9,534,131  $  14,046,939
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The following is a summary of net assets at June 30, 2019:
 Without donor  With donor 
 restrictions  restrictions1  Total

DUHS operations  $  3,789,355  $  –  $  3,789,355

University operations   1,744,612   –   1,744,612

Endowment funds   2,584,926   6,024,078   8,609,004

Investment in plant, net   612,496   –   612,496

Donor pledges and gifts   –   421,497   421,497

Annuity and other split-interest agreements   –   70,962   70,962

Student loan funds   –   13,579   13,579

Total net assets  $  8,731,389  $  6,530,116  $  15,261,505

9. Endowment

Duke’s endowment consists of over 5,500 individual funds established 
for a variety of purposes including donor-restricted endowment funds, 
funds designated by the Board to function as endowments, as well as 
interests in perpetual trusts held by others. Net assets associated with 
endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law
The Board has decided to continue to require the preservation of 
the historic dollar value of endowment funds absent explicit donor 
stipulations to the contrary. Duke classifies as net assets with donor 
restrictions the sum of (a) the original value of gifts donated to the 

donor-restricted endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts 
to the donor-restricted endowment, (c) additions to the donor restricted 
endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable 
donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the 
fund, and (d) the appreciation on donor-restricted endowment funds 
until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by Duke in a 
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by the 
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). 
The amounts appropriated for expenditure are based on the endowment 
spending rate per unit and the number of units for each fund. The 
spending rate is approved by the Board as part of Duke’s operating 
budget.

 Without Donor  With Donor 
Endowment net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2020:  Restrictions  Restrictions  Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds:

Historical value  $  –  $  2,301,399  $  2,301,399

Appreciation   –   2,729,206   2,729,206

Total donor-restricted endowment funds   –   5,030,605   5,030,605

Board-designated endowment funds   2,589,110   –   2,589,110

Interests in perpetual trusts held by others   –   854,356   854,356

Total endowed net assets  $  2,589,110  $  5,884,961  $  8,474,071

1 Purpose includes instruction, research and student aid.

8. Net Assets

The following is a summary of net assets at June 30, 2020:
 Without donor  With donor 
 restrictions  restrictions1  Total

DUHS operations  $  3,246,838  $  –  $  3,246,838

University operations   1,823,085   –   1,823,085

Endowment funds   2,589,110   5,884,961   8,474,071

Investment in plant, net   282,307   –   282,307

Donor pledges and gifts   –   450,922   450,922

Annuity and other split-interest agreements   –   71,453   71,453

Student loan funds   –   16,346   16,346

Total net assets  $  7,941,340  $  6,423,682  $  14,365,022
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 Without Donor  With Donor 
The purposes of endowed net assets as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:  Restrictions  Restrictions  Total

Instruction  $  1,521,106  $  3,357,389  $  4,878,495

Student aid   123,531   1,744,188   1,867,719

Program support   944,473   783,384   1,727,857

Total endowed net assets  $  2,589,110  $  5,884,961  $  8,474,071

 Without Donor  With Donor 
The purposes of endowed net assets as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:  Restrictions  Restrictions  Total

Instruction  $  1,556,903  $  3,427,823  $  4,984,726

Student aid   80,084   1,784,123   1,864,207

Program support   947,939   812,132   1,760,071

Total endowed net assets $  2,584,926  $  6,024,078  $  8,609,004

Spending Policy
Duke utilizes the total return concept (income yield and appreciation) 
in the management of its endowment. Duke has implemented a 
spending policy designed to stabilize annual spending levels and 
preserve the real value of the endowment over time. In accordance with 
Duke’s policy, a predetermined endowment spending rate consistent 
with Duke’s total return objective has been established and approved 
by the Board. Should endowment returns prove to be insufficient to 
support this policy, the balance is provided from accumulated capital 
gains. Should endowment returns exceed the amounts necessary to 
attain this objective, the balance is reinvested. The effective spending 
rates for fiscal 2020 were 5.1% for financial aid endowments and 
3.9% for non-financial aid endowments. The effective spending rates 
for fiscal 2019 were 5.2% for financial aid endowments and 3.9% 
for non-financial aid endowments. The annual distribution under the 
spending policy described above is reported as investment return 
included in operating revenues. Additionally, the Board authorizes 
the use of specific amounts of previously reinvested income, capital 
gains, and principal related to Board-designated endowment funds for 
special academic development initiatives and to support the operations 
and maintenance of certain facilities. The amounts reported in the 
consolidated statements of activities include supplemental endowment 
distributions totaling $216,137 and $236,516 in fiscal 2020 and 2019, 
respectively.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters
Under the policy approved by the Board, endowment assets are 
invested in a manner that is intended to produce results that exceed 
the price and yield results of a benchmark composed of 70% of the 
MSCI All Country World Index and 30% of the Bloomberg Barclays 
U.S. Aggregate Bond Index. Duke expects its endowment funds, over 
long time periods, to provide an average annual real rate of return of 
approximately 5.0%. Actual returns in any given year may vary from 
this amount.

Funds with Deficiencies
From time to time, the fair value of endowment assets may fall below 
the fund’s original value. Deficiencies of this nature are reported in net 
assets with donor restrictions. As of June 30, 2020, endowment funds 
with an original gift amount of $85,198 had a market value of $83,351, 
which is a deficiency of $1,847 below the original gift amount. As of 
June 30, 2019, there were no endowment funds with market values 
below the original gift amount.

 Without Donor  With Donor 
Endowment net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2019:  Restrictions  Restrictions  Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds:

Historical value  $  –  $  2,194,869  $  2,194,869

Appreciation   –   2,943,911   2,943,911

Total donor-restricted endowment funds   –   5,138,780   5,138,780

Board-designated endowment funds   2,584,926   –   2,584,926

Interests in perpetual trusts held by others   –   885,298   885,298

Total endowed net assets  $  2,584,926  $  6,024,078  $  8,609,004
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Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

 Without Donor  With Donor 
 Restrictions  Restrictions  Total

Balance as of June 30, 2018  $  2,724,843  $  5,800,003  $  8,524,846

Investment return, net   73,546   326,279   399,825

Contributions   –   113,080   113,080

New Board-designated endowment funds   64,976   –   64,976

Appropriations for expenditure   (278,439)   (215,284)   (493,723)

Balance as of June 30, 2019 $  2,584,926  $  6,024,078  $  8,609,004

Investment return, net   (24,702)   (21,413)   (46,115)

Contributions   –   106,530   106,530

New Board-designated endowment funds  285,509   –   285,509

Appropriations for expenditure   (256,623)   (224,234)   (480,857)

Balance as of June 30, 2020  $  2,589,110  $  5,884,961  $  8,474,071

10. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

Defined Contribution Retirement Savings Plan
Faculty and staff members of Duke are eligible to participate in a 
defined contribution plan. Faculty and exempt staff members are 
eligible to receive employer-provided contributions in this plan. For 
fiscal 2020 and 2019, Duke contributed $185,519 and $176,291, 
respectively, to this plan. Effective July 1, 2020, as approved by the 
Board, Duke will suspend contributions to the plan for twelve (12) 
months.

Defined Benefit Pension and Postretirement  
Medical Benefit Plans
Duke has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan for 
substantially all non-exempt employees. The benefit for this plan is 
based on years of service and the employee’s compensation during the 
last 10 years of employment. Duke expects to contribute $26,193 to the 
plan in fiscal 2021.

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the accumulated benefit obligation for 
the pension benefits was $2,555,193 and $2,126,060, respectively. 
At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the plan was under funded in relation to 
accumulated benefits by $756,796 and $277,954, respectively.

Duke also sponsors an unfunded defined benefit postretirement 
medical plan that covers all full-time employees who elect coverage and 

satisfy the plan’s eligibility requirements when they retire. The plan is 
contributory with retiree contributions established as a percentage of 
the total cost of medical care for retirees and their dependents. Duke 
pays all benefits on a current basis. DUHS employees hired after June 
30, 2002 are not eligible for DUHS contributions to the cost of this 
benefit and must bear the full cost themselves if elected at retirement.

As a healthcare provider, Duke utilizes an incremental cost approach 
to determine its liability for the postretirement medical plan. The total 
liability reflects estimated additional costs to provide medical benefits 
to retirees within DUHS facilities plus the full cost to provide medical 
benefits to retirees at facilities other than DUHS.

The measurement date for both the defined benefit pension plan and 
the postretirement medical benefit plan is June 30. Duke recognizes 
the full funded status of its defined benefit pension and other 
postretirement benefit plans in the consolidated balance sheets. 
Accordingly, the liability for pension benefits as recognized in the 
consolidated balance sheets represents the actuarially determined 
projected benefit obligation (PBO) in excess of the fair value of plan 
assets at year end. The liability for other postretirement benefits as 
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets represents the actuarially 
determined accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at year end. 
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The following tables provide a reconciliation of the plans’ PBO and fair value of assets:

 Pension Benefits  Postretirement Benefits

 2020  2019  2020  2019

Reconciliation of benefit obligation

PBO at beginning of year  $  2,295,331  $  1,979,818  $  281,967  $  238,482

Service cost   90,341   74,349   6,490   5,006

Interest cost   81,373   82,740   9,625   9,903

Actuarial loss   372,910   229,350   26,832   39,530

Benefit payments   (69,079)   (65,526)   (10,747)   (10,954)

Administrative expenses (estimated)   (6,100)   (5,400)   –   –

PBO at end of year  $  2,764,776  $  2,295,331  $  314,167  $  281,967

Reconciliation of fair value for plan assets

Fair value of plan assets 
 at beginning of year  $  1,848,106  $  1,792,570  $  –  $ –

Actual return on plan assets   341   103,106   –   –

Employer contributions   24,606   23,484   –   –

Participant contributions   228   219   –   –

Benefit payments   (69,079)   (65,526)   –   –

Administrative expenses   (5,805)   (5,747)   –   –

Fair value of plan assets  
 at end of year  $  1,798,397  $  1,848,106  $  –  $  –

Funded status

Net accrued benefit liability  $  (966,379)  $  (447,225)   $  (314,167)  $  (281,967)

The following table provides the fiscal 2020 and 2019 components of net periodic benefit cost. Service cost is included in employee benefits and 
all other components are included in other pension and postretirement benefit changes in the consolidated statements of activities.

 Pension Benefits  Postretirement Benefits

 2020  2019  2020  2019

Service cost  $  90,341  $  74,349  $  6,490  $  5,006

Interest cost   81,373   82,740   9,625   9,903

Expected return on plan assets   (136,196)   (131,928)   –   –

Amortization of prior-service cost   1,862   2,485   1,391   –

Expected participant contributions   (225)   (209)   –   –

Recognized actuarial loss   12,084   –   –   –

Net periodic benefit cost $  49,239  $  27,437  $  17,506  $  14,909

The prior-service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service period of active participants. The expected 
amortization of prior-service cost for fiscal 2021 is $1,862 and $0 for the pension and postretirement benefits, respectively. The expected 
amortization of actuarial losses for fiscal 2021 is $46,772 and $3,311 for the pension and postretirement benefits, respectively. Unrecognized 
prior-service costs were $11,402 and $0 and unrecognized actuarial losses were $843,128 and $69,490 for the pension and postretirement benefits, 
respectively, as of June 30, 2020. Unrecognized prior-service costs were $13,264 and $0 and unrecognized actuarial losses were $346,746 and 
$44,049 for the pension and postretirement benefits, respectively, as of June 30, 2019.
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The assumptions used in the measurement of Duke’s benefit obligation and benefit cost are shown in the following table:

 Pension Benefits  Postretirement Benefits

 2020  2019  2020  2019

Weighted average assumptions  Obligation  Cost  Obligation  Cost  Obligation  Cost  Obligation  Cost 
as of measurement date

Discount rate  2.76%  3.60%  3.60%  4.25%  2.52%  3.48%  3.48%  4.25%

Expected return on plan assets  N/A  7.50%  N/A  7.50%  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A

Rate of compensation increase  3.00%/2.00%¹  3.00%/2.00%¹  3.00%/2.00%¹ 3.00%/2.00%¹  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A

In order to determine the benefit obligation as of June 30, 2020, the per 
capita costs of covered health care benefits was assumed to increase 
8.0% for non-Medicare eligible employees and 7.5% for Medicare 
eligible employees, declining to an ultimate annual rate of increase 
of 4.5% by 2035 for non-Medicare and 2030 for Medicare eligible 
employees. The benefit expense for fiscal 2020 was driven by the rates 
used to determine the obligation at June 30, 2019, which were 8.0% 
for non-Medicare eligible employees and 7.9% for Medicare eligible 
employees declining to an ultimate annual rate of increase of 4.5% 
by 2035 for non-Medicare eligible employees and 2030 for Medicare 
eligible employees.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the 
amounts reported for the health care plans. A 1.0% change in assumed 
health care cost trend rates would have the following effect:

 1.0% Increase  1.0% Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest $  3,362  $  (2,528) 
cost components of net periodic 
postretirement health care benefit cost

Effect on the health care component  $  41,536  $  (34,996) 
of the accumulated postretirement 
benefit obligation

The projected payments to beneficiaries under the respective plans for 
each of the five fiscal years subsequent to June 30, 2020 are as follows:

 Pension  Postretirement 
 Benefits  Benefits

2021 $  76,030  $  11,905

2022   80,361   12,692

2023   85,410   13,634

2024   91,000   14,485

2025   97,018   15,421

Projected aggregate payments for pension and postretirement benefits 
for the five-year period ending June 30, 2030 are $580,245 and 
$86,210, respectively.

1 Compensation increase for first 20 years of service/thereafter.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan Assets
The pension plan’s investment strategy focuses on maximizing total 
return and places limited emphasis on liability matching and no 
emphasis on generating income. Over the long term, the plan’s average 
exposure target is 48% equity (public and private investments in 
companies), 15% credit (investment-grade bonds, corporate bonds, 
bank debt, asset backed securities, etc.), 13% absolute return oriented 
strategies, 9% commodity (direct commodity exposure, commodity 
related equities, and private investments in energy, power, infrastructure 
and timber), 9% real estate (private real estate and REITs), 4% 
rates (public obligations including treasuries and agencies), and 2% 
inflation-linked strategies.

The expected return on pension plan assets is established at an amount 
that reflects the targeted asset allocation and expected returns for each 
component of the plan assets. The expected return was developed using 
a stochastic forecast model of long-term expected returns for each asset 
class. The rate is reviewed periodically and adjusted, as appropriate, to 
reflect changes in the expected market performance or in targeted asset 
allocation ranges.

The following is a summary of the levels within the fair value hierarchy for Duke’s plan assets at June 30:

    Investments 
Fair value as of June 30, 2020  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  reported at NAV¹  Total

Short-term investments  $  157,831   $  13,351  $  –  $  – $ 171,182

Fixed income   31,938   108,570   –   54,343  194,851 

Equities   191,317   8,613   –   78,541   278,471

Hedged strategies   26,186   (303)   –   354,997   380,880

Private capital   499   –   52,625   470,307   523,431

Real assets   4,695   3,899   –   205,224   213,818

Other   (1,291)   37,055   –   –   35,764

Total investments  $ 411,175  $  171,185  $  52,625  $  1,163,412  $  1,798,397

    Investments 
Fair value as of June 30, 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  reported at NAV¹  Total

Short-term investments  $  43,460  $  60,778  $  –  $  –  $  104,238

Fixed income   34,183   191,302   –   39,112   264,597

Equities   210,182   3,556   –   78,656   292,394

Hedged strategies   2,612   –   –   428,014   430,626

Private capital   1,038   –   50,382   432,281   483,701

Real assets   4,641   2,809   –   253,693   261,143

Other   (7,710)   19,117   –   –   11,407

Total investments  $  288,406  $  277,562  $  50,382  $  1,231,756  $  1,848,106

1  Certain investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient have not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy. Plan investments 
reported at NAV have the same strategies as those in Duke’s investment pools described in Note 7.
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The following tables present additional information about Level 3 plan assets. Both observable and unobservable inputs may be used to determine 
the fair value of positions that the Plan has classified within the Level 3 category. As a result, the unrealized gains and losses for assets within the 
Level 3 category in the table below may include changes in fair value that were attributable to both observable and unobservable inputs.

 Balance as of  Net realized and    Net Transfers  Balance as of 
 June 30, 2019  unrealized gains  Purchases  Sales  Out  June 30, 2020

Private capital  $  50,382  $  4,154  $  1,958 $  (3,869)  $  –  $  52,625

 Balance as of  Net realized and   Net Transfers  Balance as of 
 June 30, 2018  unrealized gains  Purchases  Sales  Out  June 30, 2019

Private capital  $  40,465  $  12,699 $  3,740  $  (4,997)  $  (1,525)  $  50,382

11. Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Land, buildings, and equipment, net, are summarized as follows at  
June 30:

 2020  2019

Land and land improvements  $  488,819  $  461,429

Buildings and utilities   6,332,513   5,912,977

Computer software   424,452   419,142

Equipment, furniture and vessels   1,755,075   1,697,259

Library and art collections   564,113   537,389

Construction in progress   846,804   739,347

Buildings and equipment under  
finance leases   175,635   135,336

Land, buildings and  
equipment, gross   10,587,411   9,902,879

Accumulated depreciation 
and amortization  (5,722,948)  (5,346,749)

Land buildings and  
equipment, net  $  4,864,463 $  4,556,130

Accumulated amortization for finance leases was $42,921 and $35,556 
for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively; and is 
reported in land, buildings, and equipment on the consolidated balance 
sheets.

Interest on borrowings to finance facilities is capitalized during 
construction, net of any investment income earned through the 
temporary investment of project borrowings on tax-exempt debt. Total 
net interest cost of $18,823 and $8,806 was capitalized in fiscal 2020 
and 2019, respectively.

Duke has identified conditional asset retirement obligations primarily 
related to the costs of asbestos removal and disposal that will result 
from future remediation activity. The liability was estimated using 
inflation rates ranging from 3.4% to 5.0% and discount rates ranging 
from 2.7% to 4.6%. Conditional asset retirement obligations recognized 
at June 30, 2020 and 2019 were $38,671 and $40,173, respectively, and 
are reported in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.
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12. Notes and Bonds Payable

Notes and bonds payable at June 30 consist of the following:

 Outstanding principal
 Fiscal year  Effective 
 of maturity  interest rate  2020  2019

University Tax-Exempt Bonds:

Variable-rate bonds

Series 1991B   2022   1.1%  $  16,000  $  24,000

Series 1992A   2027   1.0%   35,240   35,240

Fixed-rate bonds

Series 2014A   2042   5.0%   –   119,115

Series 2014B   2045   5.0%   –   84,710

Series 2014C   2043   5.0%   –   33,000

Series 2015B   2056   5.0%   –   368,905

Series 2016B   2045   4.7%   328,605   328,605

University Taxable Bonds:

Fixed-rate bonds

Series 2007A   2037   5.9%   200,000   200,000

Series 2015A   2049   4.1%   175,865   175,865

Series 2016A   2047   3.2%   528,780   528,780

Series 2020A   2056   2.8%   1,279,255   –

DUHS Tax-Exempt Bonds:

Variable-rate bonds

Series 2005A   2028   2.2%   73,020   79,470

Series 2005B   2028   1.9%   23,635   25,725

Series 2006A, B, and C (see Note 13)   2039   1.8%   121,620   121,620

Series 2012B (see Note 13)   2023   2.5%   18,060   23,490

Series 2016B   2042   2.1%   90,000   90,000

Series 2016C   2042   2.0%   90,000   90,000

Fixed-rate bonds

Series 2012A   2042   4.7%   2,035   276,275

Series 2016A   2028   2.0%   124,145   134,145

Series 2016D   2042   3.5%   125,100   125,100

DUHS Taxable Bonds:

Fixed-rate bonds

Series 2017   2047   3.9%   600,000   600,000

Series 2020   2042   2.9%   299,432   –

Tax-exempt commercial paper   <1 year   1.3%   33,860   33,860

Taxable commercial paper   <1 year   1.8%   60,162   60,162

Other notes payable   Various   Various   14,658   16,070

Capital lease obligations (see Note 17)   Various   Various   176,085   135,893

Unamortized premium       76,892   160,469

Unamortized debt issuance costs       (16,756)   (17,142)

Notes and bonds payable      $  4,475,693  $  3,853,357
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The aggregate annual maturities for Duke’s outstanding debt at June 30, 
2020 are as follows:

Fiscal Year  Principal Payments

2021  $  127,992

2022   35,120

2023   37,963

2024   39,987

2025   41,339

Thereafter   3,957,071

Total principal payments  $  4,239,472

Duke capitalizes and amortizes the original issue premium and issue 
costs related to applicable bond issues in a manner that approximates 
the interest method. Total net amortization for issue costs and premiums 
was $7,887 and $8,621 for fiscal 2020 and 2019, respectively, and  
is included as a reduction of interest expense in the consolidated 
statements of activities.

In January 2020, DUHS issued Series 2020 taxable bonds in the 
amount of $299,432, the proceeds of which were placed on deposit 
with a bond trustee.  The proceeds will be used to meet the principal 
and interest payments of the Series 2012A tax-exempt bonds, and 
pay certain expenses of issuing bonds. The amount of the 2012A 
bonds refunded was $273,285.  The refunding transaction resulted in 
a loss on extinguishment of debt of $10,179 representing the write-
off of the unamortized premium and bond issue costs and the escrow 
funding requirements for principal and interest payments in excess of 
the face value of the 2012A refunded bonds, and is included on other 
nonoperating activities on the consolidated statements of activities.

In May 2020, the University issued Series 2020A taxable bonds in the 
amount of $1,279,255, the proceeds of which were used to refund the 
Series 2014A-C bonds ($236,825) and 2015B bonds ($368,905), as well 
as to reimburse working capital which was used to fund various capital 
projects. The issuance includes $50,292 of debt extinguishment costs, 
and is included on other nonoperating activities on the consolidated 
statements of activities.

The refundings above meet the requirements for derecognition of the 
associated bond liabilities in fiscal 2020. Trust indentures underlying 
the DUHS Revenue Bonds contain certain covenants and restrictions.

13. Derivative and Other Financial Instruments

Investment strategies employed by DUMAC and investment managers 
retained by DUMAC incorporate the use of various derivative 
financial instruments. DUMAC uses these instruments for a number of 
investment purposes, including hedging or altering exposure to certain 
asset classes and cost-effectively adding exposures to portions of the 
portfolio. Positions are expected to create gains or losses that, when 
combined with the applicable portion of the total investment portfolio, 
provide an expected result.

During fiscal 2020 and 2019, Duke, or external investment managers 
on Duke’s behalf, entered into swap agreements, futures contracts, 
or forward contracts, and acquired warrants or rights to increase, 
reduce or otherwise modify investment exposures. These instruments 
expose Duke to risk of an unexpected movement in the fair value of 
the underlying security, a counterparty failing to meet its obligations, 
and, in certain circumstances, not being able to unwind a position at 
current fair market value due to market illiquidity. Duke has established 
procedures to monitor and manage these risks.

Duke’s investment related derivative exposures, categorized by primary underlying risk, are as follows:

Primary underlying risk as of June 30, 2020  Long Notional  Short Notional  Derivative assets  Derivative liabilities  (Loss) gain

Equity Price¹  $  1,449,726  $  283,468  $  91,391  $  (25,648)  $  (116,543)

Interest Rate²   3,072,568   396,852   5,554   (2,687)   15,606

Commodity Price³   158,278   33,312   2,706   (842)   (74,750)

Credit4⁴   3,307,537   1,801,598   260,337   (6,949)   79,989

Foreign currency exchange rate5⁴   194,555   1,354,350   12,710   (4,968)   26,634

Total  $  8,182,664  $  3,869,580 $  372,698  $  (41,094)  $  (69,064)

1 Includes swaps, and futures contracts.
² Includes options, swaps, swaptions, and futures contracts.
³ Includes swaps and futures contracts.
4 Includes credit default swaps and credit total return swaps.
5 Includes forward contracts.
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Primary underlying risk as of June 30, 2019  Long Notional  Short Notional  Derivative assets  Derivative liabilities  (Loss) gain

Equity Price¹  $  2,137,137  $  858,801  $  55,303  $  (38,898)  $  (13,380)

Interest Rate²   3,424,508   410,564   8,531   (2,417)   2,553

Commodity Price³   369,572   144,863   869   (8,924)   (67,242)

Credit4⁴   3,755,579   2,594,909   194,672   (93,760)   (52,492)

Foreign currency exchange rate5⁴   301,807   1,058,273   4,413   (6,862)   39,657

Total  $ 9,988,603  $  5,067,410  $  263,788  $  (150,861)  $  (90,904)

As part of relative value strategies, Duke and investment managers on Duke’s behalf entered into credit default swap derivative transactions on 
investment grade and high yield securities which typically have terms of five years or less to buy and sell credit protection. At June 30, 2020 and 
2019, the notional of protection sold was $3,217,728 and $3,542,290 and the notional of protection bought with identical underlying assets was 
$571,510 and $1,207,727, respectively. These instruments are included in the credit line of the preceding tables.

Duke’s investment related derivative assets and liabilities at June 30, by counterparty, are as follows:

                                               2020                                                                                              2019                                                                 

   Cash Collateral    Cash Collateral 
 Assets  Liabilities  (Held) Pledged  Assets  Liabilities  (Held) Pledged

Counterparty A   61,792   (10,300)   (46,070)   27,524   (7,531)   (25,490)

Counterparty B   39,178   (1,222)   (35,818)   63,829   (11,073)   (50,519)

Counterparty C   80,451   (5,400)   39,049   35,526   (23,574)   81,181

Counterparty D   119,578   (15,542)   (97,415)   88,729   (34,747)   (53,782)

Counterparty E   28,665   (991)   (26,710)   6,861   (44,000)   37,130

Counterparty F   29,577   (752)   (23,351)   29,982   (12,474)   (15,580)

All Others   13,457   (6,887)   16,314   11,337   (17,462)   36,422

Total  $  372,698  $  (41,094)  $  (174,001)  $  263,788  $  (150,861)  $  9,362

In addition, Duke has executed derivative financial instruments in the normal course of managing its debt portfolio using long term strategies. 
Duke has interest rate swap agreements that are designed to synthetically decrease the variable rate exposure associated with its portfolio of debt. 
In addition, Duke has a swap agreement designed to reduce the interest rate risk on variable rate indebtedness by utilizing the spread between the 
yield curves for taxable debt securities and tax-exempt municipal debt securities.

The following table summarizes the general terms for each of DUHS’ swap agreements:

 Associated Maturity  Current notional 
Effective date debt series date amount Rate Duke pays Rate Duke receives

Interest rate:

August 12, 1993  2012B  June 2023  $  18,060  5.09%  SIFMA

May 19, 2005  N/A  June 2028  $  219,050  3.60%  61.52% of one-month 
      LIBOR plus 0.28%

April 1, 2009  Portfolio6⁴  June 2039  $  127,505  4.11%  67.0% of one-month LIBOR

Basis:

July 6, 2001  N/A  July 2021  $  400,000  SIFMA  72.13% of one-month LIBOR

1 Includes options, swaps, and futures contracts.
² Includes options, swaps, swaptions, and futures contracts.
³ Includes options and futures contracts.
4 Includes credit default swaps, swaptions, and credit total return swaps.
5 Includes options and forward contracts.
6 Notional amount of the April 2009 Interest Rate Swap declines coincident with the principal schedules for the Series 2006A/B/C bonds. The residual portion is $5,885.
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The fair value of each swap is the estimated amount DUHS would 
receive or pay to terminate the swap agreement at the reporting date, 
taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness 
of the swap counterparties. The fair value is included in other liabilities 
on the consolidated balance sheets. The change in fair value is included 
as a gain or loss in other nonoperating activities on the consolidated 
statements of activities. The net settlement amount incurred on the 
swaps is included in interest expense on the consolidated statements 
of activities. The collateral to support the related swaps is included in 
short-term investments within investments on the consolidated balance 
sheets. The debt derivative instruments contain cross-collateralization 
provisions that require each counterparty to post collateral if the fair 
value meets certain thresholds.

DUHS derivative instruments contain provisions requiring long-term, 
unsecured debt to be maintained at specified credit ratings from 
Moody’s Investor Service and Standard & Poor’s Rating Service. If 
the ratings of DUHS’ debt were to fall below certain benchmarks, the 
counterparty could request immediate payment on derivatives in net 
liability positions. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, DUHS’ long-term debt 
ratings exceeded these requirements. The aggregate fair value of all 
derivative instruments with credit-risk related contingent features that 
were in a net liability position on June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $100,098 
and $77,028, respectively, for which DUHS has no posted collateral 
in the normal course of business. If the credit-risk related features 
underlying these agreements were triggered on June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
DUHS would have been required to post an additional $100,098 and 
$77,028, respectively, of collateral to its counterparties.

Financial Information Related  2020  2019
to Swap Agreements  Fair Value  Gain (loss)  Fair Value  Gain (loss)

August 1993 Interest Rate Swap  $  (1,727)  $  464  $  (2,191)  $  355

May 2005 Interest Rate Swap   (32,913)   (5,401)   (27,512)   (5,090)

April 2009 Interest Rate Swap   (65,181)   (17,856)   (47,325)   (15,547)

July 2001 Basis Swap   (277)   (857)   580   (105)

Total  $  (100,098)  $  (23,650)  $  (76,448)  $  (20,387)

DUHS is exposed to financial loss in the event of nonperformance by 
a counterparty to any of the financial instruments described above. 
General market conditions could impact the credit standing of the 
counterparties and, therefore, potentially impact the value of the 
instruments on the consolidated balance sheets. DUHS controls this 
counterparty credit risk by considering the credit rating, business risk, 

and reputation of any counterparty before entering into a transaction, 
monitoring for any change in the credit standing of its counterparty 
during the life of the transaction, and requiring collateral be posted 
when predetermined thresholds are crossed. DUHS is also exposed to 
interest rate risk driven by factors influencing the spread between the 
taxable and tax-exempt market interest rates on its basis swap.

14. Affiliated Organizations

The Private Diagnostic Clinic, PLLC (the PDC)
The PDC is a professional limited liability company consisting of 
physicians practicing primarily within DUHS facilities and PDC 
clinics. The purpose of the PDC is to provide a structure separate from 
Duke in which the members of the physician faculty of the School 
of Medicine may engage in the private practice of medicine and still 
serve as members of the faculty of the University conducting clinical 
teaching and medical research. Under multiple agreements between 
the PDC and Duke, the PDC: (1) makes payments for professional 
services supplied by Duke to the PDC; (2) pays rent for the PDC’s use 
of space; and (3) makes payments for the goodwill and other benefits 
derived from the PDC’s association with Duke. A substantial portion 
of the payments is used by Duke to support academic programs in the 
clinical departments of the School of Medicine. These payments totaled 
$140,423 and $141,012 for fiscal 2020 and 2019, respectively, and 
are recognized as revenue in grants and contracts in the consolidated 
statements of activities.

The Duke Endowment
Established in 1924 by James Buchanan Duke, The Duke Endowment 
is a charitable trust created to promote philanthropic purposes by 
making grants for educational, health care, child care, and religious 
purposes within North Carolina and South Carolina. The University is 
a named beneficiary of The Duke Endowment and receives substantial 
support from The Duke Endowment in the forms of unrestricted 
operating support and discretionary grants. While Duke and The Duke 
Endowment have a common heritage, each having been founded 
through the generosity of James Buchanan Duke, they are two separate 
entities, each with its own purposes, office, officers, and trustees. 
The Duke Endowment has been required by its indenture to distribute 
certain amounts of income to Duke from the Original Corpus, Corpus 
Item VIII, and Corpus Item XI, subject to a limited right to withhold 
by The Duke Endowment trustees. Through June 30, 2020, this right to 
withhold has never been exercised.
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The Duke Endowment trustees now invest for total return in accordance 
with current investment practices, with the result that (a) the distinction 
between “principal” and “income” in the traditional sense can no 
longer be readily identified, if at all, and (b) the traditional “income” 
that can be identified is often inadequate to meet beneficiary needs. 
Accordingly, by an Order dated December 15, 2009, the Superior 
Court of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina further broadened the 
authority of The Duke Endowment trustees to distribute principal to its 
beneficiaries.

Unrestricted operating support from The Duke Endowment was 
$12,500 for fiscal 2020 and 2019. Such amounts are reflected in 

investment return designated for current operations in the consolidated 
statements of activities. Duke received discretionary grant payments 
from The Duke Endowment of $41,283 and $38,258 for fiscal 2020 
and 2019, respectively.

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the portion of The Duke Endowment’s 
net assets included in net assets with donor restrictions on Duke’s 
consolidated balance sheets, and from which Duke derives unrestricted 
operating support, had a fair value of $736,863 and $773,850 
respectively. Duke has no equity interest in the principal of The Duke 
Endowment trust, which had a fair value of approximately $3.7 billion 
at June 30, 2020.

15. Functional Expenses

Expenses are presented by functional classification in accordance with 
the overall service mission of Duke. Duke’s primary program services 
are academic instruction and research, and health care services. 
Expenses for auxiliary enterprises, library, and student services are 
incurred in support of academic instruction and research, and as such 
are included therein. Plant operation and maintenance expense is 

allocated to program and supporting activities based upon periodic 
assessment of facilities usage. Other natural expenses attributable to 
more than one functional expense category are allocated using a variety 
of cost allocation techniques, such as square footage and time and 
effort. Total amounts allocated in fiscal 2020 and 2019 were $191,592 
and $159,241, respectively.

Expenses are reported in the consolidated statements of activities in natural categories. Functional expenses were categorized as follows:

 Academic 
 instruction &  Health care  General 
For the year ended June 30, 2020:  research  services  administration  Total

Salaries and wages  $  1,276,008  $  1,027,902  $  687,835  $  2,991,745

Employee benefits   325,510   267,371   182,535   775,416

Student aid   46,618   –   –   46,618

Other operating expenses¹   761,531   1,486,534   231,491   2,479,556

Interest   49,813   49,658   30,239   129,710

Depreciation   260,785   143,090   31,921   435,796

Total  $  2,720,265  $  2,974,555  $  1,164,021  $  6,858,841

 Academic 
 instruction &  Health care  General 
For the year ended June 30, 2019:  research  services  administration  Total

Salaries and wages  $  1,228,209  $  953,858  $  629,065  $  2,811,132

Employee benefits   307,278   212,921   190,160   710,359

Student aid   46,205   –   –   46,205

Other operating expenses¹   811,849   1,397,436   230,428   2,439,713

Interest   53,313   63,451   27,223   143,987

Depreciation   248,375   139,338   33,682   421,395

Total  $  2,695,229  $  2,767,004  $  1,110,558  $  6,572,791

1 Other operating expenses primarily includes payments for supplies, professional services, and subrecipients for research.
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16. Managing Conflicts of Interest

Members of Duke’s governing boards and senior administration may, 
from time to time, be associated, either directly or indirectly, with 
companies doing business with Duke.

Written conflict of interest policies are maintained for members of 
the governing boards of the University, DUHS, and DUMAC that 
require, among other things, that no member of a governing board 
may participate in any decision in which he or she (or an immediate 
family member) has a material financial interest. Each governing board 
member is required to certify compliance with the conflict of interest 
policy on an annual basis and indicate whether Duke does business with 
an entity in which that member (or an immediate family member) has 
a material financial interest. When such relationships exist, measures, 
including written management plans, are taken to mitigate any actual 
or perceived conflict, including requiring that such transactions be 

conducted at arm’s length, for good and sufficient consideration, based 
on terms that are fair and reasonable to and in the best interests of Duke, 
and in accordance with applicable conflict of interest laws and policies 
in effect. No such associations that have been disclosed are considered 
to be material to the consolidated financial statements.

For members of the senior administration, Duke requires annual 
disclosure of significant financial interests in, or employment or 
consulting relationships with, entities doing business with Duke. These 
annual disclosures cover members of the senior administration and their 
immediate family members. When such relationships exist, measures 
are taken to appropriately manage the actual or perceived conflict in the 
best interests of Duke. No such associations that have been disclosed 
are considered to be material to the consolidated financial statements.

17. Leases

Duke leases various machinery, equipment and buildings under operating and financing leases expiring at various dates through 2038. 

Aggregate future minimum lease payments under noncancelable finance and operating leases as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

 Finance  Operating 
Year  Leases  Leases

2021  $  14,997  $  70,570 

2022   14,935   95,893 

2023   14,328   91,456 

2024   12,532   90,564 

2025   9,146   90,316 

Thereafter   223,375   817,141  

Total lease payments   289,313   1,255,940 

Less: Interest portion   (113,228)  (203,384)

Total lease liabilities  $  176,085  $  1,052,556  

The components of lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 are as follows:

 2020 

Finance lease expense:     

Amortization of right-of-use assets  $ 9,653 

Interest on lease liabilities   6,941 

Operating lease expense   108,161

Short-term lease expense  33,255  

Total lease expense  $ 158,010  

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new lease liabilities:

Finance leases  $ 22,134

Operating leases   237,443 

Weighted-average remaining lease term:

Finance leases    33 years

Operating leases    14 years 

Weighted-average discount rate: 

Finance leases   3.30%

Operating leases  2.28% 
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18. Commitments and Contingencies

Construction and Purchase Commitments
At June 30, 2020, open contracts for the construction of physical 
properties amounted to $421,597 and outstanding purchase orders for 
normal operating supplies and equipment amounted to $26,024.

Medical Malpractice Coverage
DCC (see Note 1) insures a portion of the medical malpractice risks 
and patient general liability, privacy/cyber liability, and international 
liability risks of DUHS clinical providers and the PDC. The assets, 
liabilities, and results of operations for DCC have been reflected in 
the net assets without donor restrictions of Duke. Policy limits were 
$110,000 per incident for fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 
and $145,000 in the aggregate for fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 
2019 for medical malpractice risks. DCC limits its exposure to loss 
through reinsurance and excess loss agreements.

Estimated professional liability costs include the estimated cost for 
reported claims incurred in the DCC program. DCC evaluates its 
estimated professional liability on a discounted actuarial basis. The 
discount rate at June 30, 2020 and 2019 is 3.5%. Accrued professional 
liability costs as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $38,282 and 
$42,238, respectively. Investments and other receivables in this amount 
have been designated by DUHS to settle these claims. Also included in 
estimated professional liability costs are estimated claims incurred but 
not reported related to DUHS in the amounts of $6,082 and $6,276 as 
of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The estimated liability for professional and general liability claims 
may be significantly affected if current and future claims differ from 
historical trends. While the administration monitors reported claims 
closely and considers potential outcomes as estimated by its actuaries 
when determining its professional and patient general liability accruals, 
the complexity of the claims, the extended period of time to settle 
the claims, and the wide range of potential outcomes complicate the 
estimation. In the opinion of the administration, adequate provision has 
been made for this related risk.

Self-Insurance
Duke provides employee healthcare benefits, long-term disability 
benefits, unemployment benefits, and workers’ compensation benefits 
primarily though employer contributions, participant contributions, and 
excess loss insurance, and manages those programs through third-party 
administrators. In the opinion of the administration, adequate provision 
has been made for the related risks within accounts payable and accrued 
payroll or accrued postretirement/postemployment and other benefit 
obligations on Duke’s consolidated balance sheets.

Partnership Investment Commitments
There were $1.6 billion of commitments to private capital and real 
asset investments as of June 30, 2020. These funds may be drawn down 
over the next several years upon request by the general partners. Duke 
expects to finance these commitments with available cash and expected 
proceeds from the sales of securities.

Contingencies
Duke is involved in various legal actions occurring in the normal course 
of activities, including an antitrust allegation. While the final outcomes 
cannot be determined at this time, the administration is of the opinion 
that the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse 
effect on Duke’s financial position. 

Laws and regulations governing Medicare, Medicaid, and other federal 
programs are complex and subject to interpretation. Duke, in part 
through its compliance program, seeks to ensure compliance with such 
laws and regulations, and to rectify instances of noncompliance with 
governmental program rules. Duke believes that it is in compliance 
with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any 
pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential 
wrongdoing that would have a material effect on Duke’s consolidated 
financial statements. Compliance with such laws and regulations is 
subject to future government review and interpretation as well as 
significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties and exclusion 
from the Medicare, Medicaid, and other Federal programs.
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Balance Sheets  SCHEDULE 1

THE UNIVERSITY (SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION) 
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

 2020  2019

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents  $  156,471  $  176,593

Accounts receivable, net    269,111   314,996

Prepaid expenses, inventories, and other assets    53,984   59,246

Contributions receivable, net    307,730   329,959

Investments    10,633,595   10,390,706

Land, buildings, and equipment, net    2,828,192   2,804,935

Operating lease right-of-use assets   706,032  –

Interests in perpetual trusts held by others    852,644   883,476

Total assets  $  15,807,759  $  14,959,911

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued payroll  $  419,435  $  441,226

Deferred revenues and deposits   214,969   206,779

Notes and bonds payable   2,720,661   2,120,923

Operating lease liabilities  714,247  –

Annuity and other split-interest obligations   60,408   61,082

Accrued postretirement/postemployment  
 and other benefit obligations   626,843   397,273

Other liabilities   169,757   251,344

Total liabilities   4,926,320   3,478,627

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions   4,517,317   5,011,817

With donor restrictions   6,364,122   6,469,467

Total net assets   10,881,439   11,481,284

Total liabilities and net assets  $  15,807,759  $  14,959,911

The supplementary information in this schedule presents the balance sheets of the University, exclusive of DUHS. 
See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Statements of Activities  SCHEDULE 2

THE UNIVERSITY (SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION) 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

 2020  2019

Net assets without donor restrictions:

Operating revenues:

Tuition and fees  $  521,607  $  516,740

Grants, contracts and similar agreements:

Government sources   753,291   736,038

The Private Diagnostic Clinic, PLLC   67,061   68,447

Other   375,289   381,996

Total grants, contracts and similar agreements   1,195,641   1,186,481

Contributions   162,363   149,029

Investment return designated for current operations:

The Duke Endowment   12,500   12,500

Endowment spending   479,743   492,655

Other investment income   175,876   142,159

Total investment return designated for operations   668,119   647,314

Auxiliary enterprises   218,877   252,832

Operating support from DUHS   109,791   89,018

Other   130,263   146,047

Net assets released from restrictions   35,929   77,788

Total operating revenues   3,042,590   3,065,249

Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages   1,484,894   1,433,997

Employee benefits   386,080   358,928

Student aid   46,618   46,205

Other operating expenses   752,305   827,264

Interest expense   80,052   80,536

Depreciation and amortization expense   267,645   258,694

Total operating expenses   3,017,594   3,005,624

Operating surplus   24,996   59,625
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Statements of Activities  SCHEDULE 2 (CONTINUED)

 2020  2019

Nonoperating activities:

Net assets released from restrictions  $  34,010  $  15,178

Investment return (less than) in excess of amounts 
 designated for current operations, net   (302,239)   56,270

Other pension and postretirement benefit changes   (205,841)  (97,843)

Other, net   (45,426)   (132,013)

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 
 from nonoperating activities   (519,496)  (158,408)

Change in net assets without donor restrictions  (494,500)   (98,783)

Net assets with donor restrictions:

Contributions   208,911   145,196

Net assets released from restrictions   (69,939)   (92,966)

Investment return (less than) in excess of amounts 
 designated for current operations, net   (218,308)   103,082

(Losses) gains on interests in perpetual trusts held by others   (30,832)   13,796

Other, net   4,823   26,007

Change in net assets with donor restrictions (105,345)   195,115

Change in total net assets   (599,845)   96,332

Net assets at beginning of year   11,481,284   11,384,952

Net assets at end of year  $  10,881,439  $  11,481,284

Certain amounts disaggregated above 
 are presented below in the aggregate:

Contributions  $  371,274  $  294,225

Investment return   147,572   806,666

The supplementary information in this schedule presents the statements of activities of the University, exclusive of DUHS. 
See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Statements of Cash Flows  SCHEDULE 3

THE UNIVERSITY (SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION) 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

 2020  2019

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets  $  (599,845)  $  96,332

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 
 to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization   264,038   254,791

Nonperiodic changes in defined benefit plans   219,105   113,067

Provision for bad debt   18,146   39,144

Loss on extinguishment of debt  50,292  –

Loss on disposals of land, buildings and equipment   844   819

Restricted contributions received for long-term  
 investment and capital projects   (231,140)   (210,344)

Investment gains with donor restrictions   (512)   (7,160)

Net realized and unrealized gains on investments   (30,009)   (642,726)

Losses/(gains) on interests in perpetual trusts held by others   30,832   (13,796)

Change in:      

Accounts receivable, net   43,730   (53,375)

Prepaid expenses, inventories, and other assets   5,257   5,353

Contributions receivable, net   4,083   26,004

Operating lease right-of-use assets  (706,032)  –

Accounts payable and accrued payroll   3,715   57,277

Deferred revenues and deposits   8,190   (5,478)

Annuity and other split-interest obligations   (674)   1,335

Accrued postretirement/postemployment 
 and other benefit obligations   10,465   6,980

Operating lease liabilities  714,247  –

Other liabilities   (81,587)   49,108

Net cash used in operating activities   (276,855)   (282,669)
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Statements of Cash Flows  SCHEDULE 3 (CONTINUED)

 2020  2019

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of investments  (12,842,037)  (10,575,350)

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments   12,629,157   10,872,060

Purchases of land, buildings, and equipment   (317,252)   (429,756)

Disbursements for loans to students   (3,183)   (3,009)

Repayments of loans by students   5,338   6,820

Change in deposits with bond trustees   5   1,281

Net cash used in investing activities   (527,972)   (127,954)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Restricted contributions received for long-term 
 investment and capital projects   231,140   210,344

Investment gains with donor restrictions   512   7,160

Principal payments on notes and bonds payable  (665,523)  (3,695)

Proceeds from borrowings  1,219,658   –

Proceeds from finance leases  342  –

Payments on finance leases  (1,424)  –

Net cash provided by financing activities   784,705   213,809

Net change in cash and cash equivalents   (20,122)   (196,814)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   176,593   373,407

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $  156,471  $  176,593

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Change in accounts payable for land, buildings, and equipment  $  (25,506)  $  (592)

Cash paid for interest (net of amounts capitalized)   86,766   84,599

The supplementary information in this schedule presents the statements of activities of the University, exclusive of DUHS. 
See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.



Chilled Water Plant #3





Printed on recycled paper.


